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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City of Belpre
Washington County

P.O. Box 160

Belpre, Ohio 45714-0160

To the City Council:

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Belpre, Washington
County, Ohio, (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999, and have issued our report thereon
dated May 23, 2000. We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s general purpose financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported
to management of the City in a separate letter dated May 23, 2000.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting in order
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements
and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal
control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over financial
reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk
that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the general purpose financial statements
being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting
and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, we noted other matters involving
the internal control over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this report, that we have reported
to management of the City in a separate letter dated May 23, 2000.
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This report is intended for the information and use of the audit committee, City Council, and management of
the City, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

May 23, 2000
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Will Neff — Safely-Service Director

May 23, 2000

City Council and
Citizens of Belpre:
Belpre, Ohio 45714

We are pleased 1o submil to you the City of Belpre's first Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).
This CAFR was prepared by the City Auditor’s Office with the assistance of the Local Government Services
division of the Auditor of Stale. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the
completeness and fairess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the
data as presented is accurate in all material respects, that it is presented is a manner designed to set forth
fairly the financial position and results of operations of the City as measured by the financial activity of its
various funds, and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding
ofthe City's financial activity have been included. This report will provide the taxpayers of the Cily of Belpre
with comprehensive financial data in a format which will enable them to gain an understanding of the City
of Belpre's financial affairs. Copies will be made available to the Chamber of Commerce, major taxpayers,
the Washington County Public Library, financial institutions, and other interested parties.

The comprehensive annual report is presented in three sections as foliows:

1. The Intreductory Section, which contains & Table of Contents, Letter of Transmittal, List of
Principal Officials, and an Organization Chant of the City.

2. The Financial Section, which begins with the Report of Independent Accountants, includes
the General Purpose Financial Statements and Notes that provide an overview of the City's
financial position and results of operations, the Combining Stalements by fund type, and
other schedules that provide detailed information relative to the General Purpose Financial
Statements.

3. The Statistical Sedlion, which presents social and economic data, financial trends, and the
fiscal capacity of the City of Belpre.

THE CITY OF BELPRE

The City is located on the Ohio River at River Mile Post 184 with good river and rail transportation. Belpre
is located only 114 mites from Columbus, 150 miles from Pittsburgh, 100 miles from Huntington, and 285
miles from Washington D.C.

Belpre, Ohio’s second City, was founded April 11, 1789. The original settlers called it “Bellepraire” or
beautiful prairie. After the Revolutionary War, the early settlers prospered because of the rich farm land.
From one of the largest townships in Ohio, the Village of Belpre was formed in 1901, and Belpre was
incorporated as a City in 1961.

The early settlers came as pariof the Ohio Company. The Federal Govemment, unable to pay cash for their
services during the war, gave them land in Ohio. Most were from New England and were well educated.
They passed this education on to their children in the wildermess. One of them was Balhsheba Rouse, the
first female school teacher in Chio.

Phone - (740) 423-7592 v Fax — (740) 423-4967






Qver the yeérs, Belpre grew and prospered. One of the early families, the Dana family, brought along with
them seeds from their apple trees in New England. Thus grew a large vinegar and canning business with
vinegar being shipped as far as New Orleans. In laler years, truck farming became the largest business in
the area.

During the 1950's and 60’s came the growth of the chemical industry, especially plastics. This growth
avershadowed the farming industry, and many ofthe truck farmers sold their land for housing developments.

CITY CRGANIZATION

Belpre is a statutory City operaling under the Mayor/Council form of govemment. The citizens of Belpre
elect a mayor, auditor, law director, treasurer, and eight members of council including the president, three
council members-at-large, and four ward council members. Responsible for the various departments ofthe
City are the safety service director, the public works superintendent, the auditor, treasurer, and law director.

REPORTING ENTITY AND SERVICES PROVIDED

For financial reporting purposes, the City includes in this report ali funds, account groups, and agencies that
are controlied by, or are dependent on, the City's legislative branch. These determinations are made on the
basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, outstanding debt secured by revenues or general taxing authority
of the City, and/or the City's obligation to fund any deficits that may occur.

The City of Belpre, as a governmental entity, is totally separate and distinct from the Beipre Volunteer Fire
Fighters, Inc. Although the two entities share similar names, they are independent of each other in terms
of goveming bodies, financial resources, and management. Even though the City provides fire slations,
fire trucks, and equipment, the corporation was set up by the firefighters themselves for independent fund
raising and aclivities. Because of the separate and independent nature of this corporation, its financial
stalements are notincluded in this report. Likewise, the Belpre City School District is a separate and distinct
enlity from the City of Belpre. Consequently, its financial statements are not included in this report. The
Community Action Program Corporation of Washington-Morgan Counties, Ohio, and the Wood, Washington,
and Wirt Planning Commission are reported as jointly govemed organizations.

The City provides a wide range of municipal services. These services include police, senior citizens
programs, recreation programs (including parks), transportation programs (including streets), water
distribution and wastewater treatment programs, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

As the population approaches the 10,000 mark, Belpre is seeing much new growth: a new City Building for
the next century, more City services, and more businesses moving into town. Local service clubs are
providing new leadership. The Historical Society has a new Museumn and Educational Center and the Civitan
Park and boat docking area are being improved. Many of the businesses that have been a part of Belpre
over the years are expanding to meet the demand for their services and products.

Several business developments occurred in 1999 which gave the local economy a boost. These include the
opening of the Physicians Outpatient Surgery Center, the new CVS and Rite Aid pharmacies, and the
construction of Wendy's restaurant.

The City also made moves to stimulate economic growth by purchasing the former Snyder junkyard for
fulure cleanup and park expansion. The land adjacent to Washingten Boulevard will be sold 1o new
businesses.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

FOR THE YEAR - The City embarked on ambitious infrastructure improvements during the year.

The City constructed a modem “built for use™ City Building, a first in local government history, at a
centralized location near Howe's Grove Park. The City provided expanded parking and the new building is
localed with other service locations, including the Chamber of Commerce and the Belpre Senior Citizens
Center, to make up a Municipal Center.

vi



The City nearly completed two new water wells, along with a new drinking water treatment facility, which was
funded by State Issue Il grants and loans, Appalachian Regional Commission grants, and low interest loans.

The City completed a water line extension along County Road 51, which was funded by a private grant.

Riverbank seating at Civitan Park for the viewing of shoreline activities was completed, which was funded
by a State grant.

Several City streets were paved during 1999 with our own funds. Also, grants were secured for the paving
of Putnam Howe Drive, Rockland Avenue, Stone Road, and for the erection of traffic signals at the
intersection of Farson Street and Washington Boulevard.

Also during 1999, the City purchased a 9.25 acre tract of land which was the site of a former salvage yard.
A portion of this property has been resold to help defray the cost. Another portion may be sold, and the
balance of the property is being held by the City for expansion of the wastewater treatment facility and
possible expansion of its recreation area.

FOR THE FUTURE - Infrastructure upgrades will continue to be a priority for the City. In the year 2000, the
City will embark on a major upgrade of the wastewater treatment facility. The cost could exceed 1.5 million
dollars. This project will be funded by grants and low interest loans secured in prior years from Stale Issue
Il and the Washington County Commissioners.

Engineering work and grant application work will continue for a planned 500,000 gallon water storage tank
at the east end of the City.

Work will continue on the replacement of the Farson Street water line and the installation of the water
pressure booster station for that area.

Work will centinue on the upgrade of wastewater lift stations.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management ofthe Cityis responsible for establishing and maintaining an intemal control structure designed
to ensure that the assets of the City are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that adeguate
accounting data are compiled to allow forthe preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principals (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonahle assurance recognizes
that: (1) the cost of control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived from their implementation, and
(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgements by management.

As a recipient of federal, state, and county financial assistance, the City also is responsible for ensuring that
an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations

related to those programs. The intemal control structure is subject to periodic evaluation by management
and the City Auditor’s office.

The City undergoes an annual audit by the Office of the Auditor of State. As part of the City's audit, tests
are made to determine the adequacy of the intemal control structure, including internal controls retated to
federal financial assistance programs, as well as 1o dete rmine that the City has complied with applicable laws
and regulations that are material to the general purpose financial statements and federal financial assistance
programs. In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is
to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by City
Council. Activities of all funds are included in the annual appropriated budget, which is prepared on the basis
of cash receipts and disbursements (including encumbrances). The level of budgetary control {that is the
level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount} is established at the fund level.
The allocation of appropriations among departments and objects within a fund may be modified during the
year by the City Auditor without an ordinance of Council. The City also maintains an encumbrance

accounting system as a technique of accomplishing budgetary control. Unencumbered appropriations lapse
at year end.




As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the City
conlinues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

GENERAL GOVERNMENT FUNCTIONS - The following schedule presents a summary of the General
Fund's revenues for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1999, and the amount and percentage of
increases and decreases in relalion to the prior year's revenues.

1899 Increasef Percent
1998 1999 Percent Decrease of Increase/

Revenues: Amount Amount of Total from 1998 Decreasa
Municipal fncome Tax $643,041 $6684,435 45.78% $41,394 6.44%
Property and Other taxes 198,130 229,939 15.38 31,809 16.05
Charges for Services 63,423 67,110 4.49 3,687 5.81
Fines, Licenses, and Permits 98,960 146,591 9.80 47,631 48.13
Intergovernmental 196,473 283,695 18.97 87,222 4439
Interest 56,739 66,074 4.42 9,335 16.45
Other 58,153 17,320 1.16 {40 833} (70.22)

$1.314919  $1,495 164 100.00% $180,245 13.71%

The increases in income and property taxes are due to general economic growih, the reappraisal, and
increased construction activity within the City. The increase in fines, licenses, and permits is due o an effort
by the Mayorto clear a backlog of cases. The increase in intergovernmental revenue is due mainly to estate
tax. Interest income increased despite an overall reduction of interest rates due to more diligent control of
investments. The decrease in otherrevenue was due to a large refund of Worker’s Compensation premiums
received in 1998.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund expenditures for the years ended December
31, 1998 and 1989, and the amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relations to the prior
year's expenditures.

1939 Increase/ Percent
1998 19580 Percent Decrease of Increase/

Expenditures: Amaount Amount of Total from 1998 Decrease
Security of Persons and Property $822,186 $861,316 62.98% $39,130 4.76%
Public Health Services 28,112 19,910 1.46 {8,202) {29.18)
Leisure Time Activities 19,500 20,367 1.49 858 440
Transportation 57,086 70,735 517 13,649 23.91
General Government 370,244 382,183 28.68 21,848 5.90
Principal Retirement 2,634 2,808 0.21 175 6.64
Interest and Fiscal Charges 417 242 0.02 {(175) {(41.97)

$1,300,288 §$1,387,572 100.00% $67,284 517%

The increase in security of persons and property is due to increased costs associated with the police and fire
departments. The decrease in public health services is due to the City no longer providing these services
with City personnel, but rather contracting for these services. Leisure time aclivities experienced a slight
increase. The increase in transportation is due to increased utility costs for street lighting. Expenditures for
general govemment increased due to increased labor costs and other inflationary increases.

GENERAL FUND BALANCE - During 1999, the fund balance of the General Fund increased $161,373, from
$276,934 10 $438,307. The fund balance increase is attributable to increased income tax, increased property
tax due to the reappraisal and increased construction activity within the City, increased fine collections, and
a substantial estate tax settlement in 1999,

ENTERPRISE OPERATIONS - The City's enterprise operations consist of four separate funds: Pool,
Sanitation, Sewer, and Walter,

The Pool fund exists to account for the operations of the City swimming pool. The fund experienced a net
loss of $5,927 despite an increase in pool rates during 1999. Retained eamnings of $32,635 existed at
December 31, 1999, compared 1o $35,702 at December 31, 1998.
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The City does not provide trash pickup, but contracts this service from an outside vendor. The City provides
the billing service for the trash pickup on the existing utility bills. This means greater value 1o the citizens.
The trash pickup services are accounted for in the Sanitation Fund. Net income increased $8,883 during
1999, from $24,787 at December 31, 1998, to $33,670 at December 31, 1999,

The City's Water and Sewer departments continue to operate while keeping user rates at a minimum. The
City is proud of the fact that our system is able to provide plentiful amounts of water even during the drought
conditions of recent summers. The major Wastewater Treatment plant upgrade, which is now underway,
should help give the citizens good service for years into the future. The Sewer Fund had net income of
$6,027 during 1999, and retained eamings of $1,799,701 at December 31, 1999. The Water Fund had net
income of $80,150 during 1999, and retained eamings of $1,362,396 at December 31, 1999,

FIDUCIARY FUNDS - The City’s fiduciary funds consist of agency funds. The agency funds include the
Payroll and Mayor's Court. These funds had assets totaling $5,868 at December 31, 1999,

DEBT ADMINISTRATION - The City had no bond issues outstanding but did have various loans payable at
December 31, 1999, totaling $1,301,721. The City has two Issue Il loans outstanding, one for water wall
replacements and one for paving. The City has four additional loans outstanding: one for property, one for
the city building, one for three emergency vehicles, and the remaining loan is for water improvements.

Under the Uniform Bond act of the Ohio Revised Code, the City has a legal limitation on unvoted general
obligation debt based on 5 %% of the assessed valuation of real and personal property. As of December
31, 1999, the City's netgeneral obligation notes (as defined by the Ohio Revised Code), was $1,128,686 and
well below the legal limit of $4,287 .615.

CASHMANAGEMENT - Investments are govemed by the City's investment policy as passed by City Council
and the Ohio Revised Code. The purpose of the City's investiment policy is to maximize return op
investment of the City's excess cash balances consistent with the safety of those monies while maintaining
desired liquidity. The City invested in a bank account and short term cash equivalents such as certificates
of deposit and ovemight repurchase agreements. The City may also invest in money market accounts,
federal agency securities, and the State Treasury Asset Reserve (STAR Chio). The City Auditor's
Department has implemented an excellent cash management program. While the City uses only safe,
conservative investments, at the same time it takes full advantage of available investment opportunities.
Interest eamed on investments is allocated to the various funds in accordance with the investment policy.
Following is a schedule of interest eamed for the past ten years:

Year Amount
1999 $69,311
1998 61,429
1997 30,8035
1996 23,800
1995 18,706
1994 47,391
1993 45,556
1992 32,253
1991 49,278
1950 21,268

The City complied with applicable provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and Codified Ordinances pertaining
to types of investments held and institutions in which deposils were made. The Cily also complied with
provisions of the Ohio Revised Code concerning security requirements. The Ohio Revised Code does not
require security in the City's name. Instead, the investment institutions may pledge a pool of government
securities the face value of which is at least 110% of the total value of public monies on deposit. The City
monitors compliance with the various statutes mentioned abave and will continue to do so in future years.

RISK MANAGEMENT - The City purchases insurance policies in varying amounts to insure City property
against loss or misuse and provide coverage for general liability and for errors and omissions. The City also
pays unemployment claims to the State of Ohio as incurred. The City also participates in the Ohio Worker's
Compensation program.




PENSION AND POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS - Full-time, permanent employees of the City
belong to one of lwo slate operated pension plans. (Both are cost-sharing, defined benefit, multiple-
employer plans.) Elected officials and non-uniformed employees are members of the Public Employees
Retirement System of Ohio ("PERS"). Police and fire personnel are members of the Police and Firemen's
Disability and Pension Fund (“PFDPF”). The plans provide pension benefits as well as postretirement health
care coverage to qualifying employees. Contributions fo the plans by bolh the Cily and participaling
employees are mandated by State stalute. Because both plans operate pursuantto the Ohio Revised Code,
the Ohio General Assembly could decide to amend the format of the plans and could revise contribution
benefit levels. During the plan year ended December 31, 1999, the City contributed $206,005 to the two
plans.

Information regarding the operations and funded status of both plans are available from the following
sources:

Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio
277 East Town Street

Columbus, OH 43215-4642

(614) 466-2085

The Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund
140 East Town Street

Columbus, OH 43215-5164

(614) 228-2975

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

State statules require a periedic audit. This year, the City's Audit was performed by State Auditor, Jim Petro.
The independent auditor's report on the general purpose financial statements is included in the financial
seclion of this report and is unqualified.

AWARDS

GFOA CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT - A Cerlificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is awarded by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada
(GFOA). In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficienily organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which conforms to program
standards. Such a report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

We believe our report conforms to the Cerlificate of Achievement Program requirements, and we are
submitting it to GFOA for review.

JREE CITY USA - The City received its fourth Tree Cily USA Award for the year ended December 31, 1999,
This prestigious award recognized the City for its annual program of planting new trees and maintaining and
removing old tress.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The preparation of this comprehensive annual report on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated
service ofthe entire staff of the City Auditor's Department. | would like to express my appreciation to all staff
members who have contributed or assisted in its preparation. | would also like to thank the Local
Government Services Division of the State Auditor's Office, whose help made the preparation of this report
possible.

Since

Patrick J. Hjre§, CPA
Belpre City Auditor
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T 743 East Stare Street
STATE OF OHIO Athens Mall, Suite B

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Athens, Ohia 45701
Telephone 740-524-3300
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 4004411389
Facsimile 740-594-2110

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

City of Belpre
Washingten County

P.O. Box 160

Belpre, Ohio 45714-0160

To the City Council;

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City of Belpre, Washington
County, Ohio (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An auditalsoinciudes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, in afl material
respects, the financial position of the City of Belpre, Washington County, as of December 31, 1999, and the
results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund type for the year then ended in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principals.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 23, 2000,
on our consideration of the City’s intemal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

Our auditwas performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial statements
taken as a whole. The combining and individual fund and account group financial statements and
schedules, listed in the Table of Contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the general purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is
fairly presented, in all material respects, in refation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a
whole, :



City Council
Repoit of Independent Accountants
Page 2

We did not audit the data included in the statistical section of this report and therefore express no opinion
thereon.

Jim Petro
Auditor of State

May 23, 2000
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City of Belpre, Ohio

Combined Balance Shest

All Fund Types and Account Groups

Assets and Other Debits:

Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalenis
in Segregated Accounts
Receivables:
Taxes
Accounts
Loans
Intergovemmental
Accrued Interest
Due from Other Funds
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid ltems
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Fixed Assets (Net, where applicable
of Accumulated Depreciation)

Other Debit:
Amount to be Provided from
General Government Resources

Total Assefs and Other Debits

December 31, 1999

_Govemmental Fund Types

Special Capital

General Revenue Projects
$404,624 $111,681 $366,294
0 0 0
315,025 2,790 45,641
9,605 0 0
0 0 0
41,473 26,537 0
1,345 0 0
1,352 0 0
1,512 9,456 0
14,996 4,003 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
$789,832 $154,467 $411,035




Proprietary Fiduciary
Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups
General General Totals
Fixed Long-Term {(Memorandum
Enterprise Agency Assets Obligations Only)
$462,451 $3,378 $0 $0 $1,348,428
0 2,490 0 0 2,490
0 0 0 0 363,456
206,239 0 0 0 215,844
16,084 0 0 0 16,084
0 0 0 0 68,010
0 0 0 0 1,345
0 0 0 0 1,352
6,002 0 0 0 16,970
4,622 0 0 0 23,621
24,283 0 0 0 24,283
50,000 0 0 0 50,000
4,120,867 0 6,922,129 0 11,042,996
0 0 0 1,220,559 1,220,559
$4,890,548 $5,868 $6,922,129 $1,220,559 $14,395 438

{continued)



City of Belpre, Ohio
Combined Balance Sheet
All Fund Types and Account Groups (Continued)
December 31, 1999

Govemmental Fund Types

Special Capital

General Revenue Projects
Liabilities, Fund Equity, and Other Credits:
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $15,528 $6,034 $3,324
Contracls Payable 0 0 0
Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable 12,388 4,478 0
Compensated Absences Payable 1,424 918 0
Due to Other Funds 0 1,352 0
Intergovemmental Payable 51,503 8,417 0
Retainage Payable 0 0 34,326
Deferred Revenue 270,582 0 16,012
Due to Others 200 0 0
Payable from Restricted Assets:

Customer Deposits 0 0 0

Police Pension Liability 0 0 0
Capital Lease Payable 0 0 o
Loans Payable 0 0 g
Issue Il Loans Payable 0 0 0
Total Liabifities 351,625 21,199 53,662
Fund Equity and Other Credits:
Invesiment in General Fixed Assels 0 0 0
Contributed Capital 0 0 1]
Retained Eamings 0 H 0
Fund Balances:

Reserved for Encumbrances 5,098 5,827 7,420

Reserved for Unclaimed Monies 211 0 0

Reserved for Inventory 1,512 9,456 0

Unreserved, Undesignated 431,486 117,985 350,853
Total Fund Equity and Other Credits 438,307 133,288 358,273
Tolal Liabilities, Fund Equity, and Other Crediis $780,932 $154,467 $411,935

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financiat statements



Proprietary Fiduciary
Fund Type Fund Type Account Groups
General General Totals
Fixed Long-Term {(Memorandum
Enterprise Agency Assets QObligations Only)
$26,061 $0 $0 $0 $50,947
13,680 0 0 0 13,680
8,103 0 0 0 24,969
61,180 0 0 65,871 129,393
0 0 0 0 1,352
25,331 3,378 0 0 88,629
0 0 0 0 34,328
0 0 0 0 286,594
0 2,490 0 0 2,690
74,283 0 0 0 74,283
0 0 0 23,774 23,774
0 0 0 2,228 2,228
159,722 0 0 1,059,170 1,218,892
13,313 0 0 69,516 82,829
381,673 5,868 0 1,220,559 2,034,586
0 0 6,922,129 0 6,922,129
1,412,056 0 0 1,112,056
3,396,819 0 0 0 3,396,819
0 0 0 0 18,345
0 0 0 0 211
0 0 0 0 10,968
0 0 0 0 900,324
4,508,875 0 6,922,129 0 12,360,852
$4,890,548 $5,868 $6,922,129 $1,220,559 $14,395,438




City of Belpre, Ohio
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances
All Governmental Fund Types
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Totals
Special Capital {Memorandum
General Revenue Projects Only)

Revenues:
Municipal Income Tax $684,435 %0 $252,782 $937.217
Property and Other Taxes 220,939 0 Q 229,939
Permissive Motor Vehicle License Taxes 0 35,789 o 35,789
Charges for Services 67,110 7,200 0 74,310
Fines, Licenses, and Permits 146,591 15,114 0 161,705
Intergovernmental 283,685 445,139 145,380 874,214
Interest 66,074 2,088 0 68,162
Other 17,320 23,815 0 41,135
Tolal Revenues 1,495 164 529,145 398,162 2,422 471
Expenditures:
Current

Security of Persons and Property 861,316 42,226 0 903,542

Public Health Services 19,910 0 0 19,910

Leisure Time Activities 20,367 191,067 0 211,434

Transpartation 70,735 370,312 o 441,047

General Government 352,193 11,676 0 403,869
Capital Oullay 0 0 2,044,321 2,044,321
Debt Senvice:

Principal Retirement 2,809 4,984 75,830 83,623

Interest and Fiscal Charges 242 1,494 22,260 23,996
Total Expenditures 1,367,572 621,759 2,142,411 4,131,742
Excess of Revenues Over (Under} Expendilures 127,592 (92,614} (1,744,249 {1,709,271)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 75 g 1,196,098 1,186,173
Proceeds from Loans 0 0 760,000 760,000
Operating Transfess In 60,000 51,000 150,000 261,000
Opertating Transfers Out {26,000) 0 {105,000) (131,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 34075 51,000 2,001,098 2,086,173
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing

Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and

Other Financing Uses 161,667 (41,614) 256,849 376,902
Fund Balances at Beginning

of Year (Restated - Note 3) 276,934 173,267 101,424 551,625
Increase (Decrease) in Reserve for Inventory {294) 1,615 1) 1,321
Fund Balances at End of Year $438,307 $133,268 $358,273 $929 848

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements



City of Belpre, Ohio

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
All Governmental Fund Types

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues:

Municipal Income Tax

Property and Other Taxes

Permissive Motor Vehicle License Taxes
Charges for Services

Fines, Licenses, and Permits
Intergovernmental

Interest

Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Public Health Services
Leisure Time Activities
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets

Proceeds from Loans

Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over
(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year
Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances

Fund Balances at End of Year

General Fund

Variance
Revised Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$669,500 $680,263 $10,763
194,566 229,939 35,373
0 0 0
70,212 67,822 (2,390)
96,136 145,945 49,809
188,119 251,705 63,586
37,000 64,264 27,264
27,100 17,320 {9,780)
1,282 633 1,457,258 174,625
912,393 865,351 47,042
28,638 21,671 6,967
21,145 20,336 809
80,000 70,698 9,304
424 950 397,295 27,655
0 0 0

0 0 0

0 0 0
1,467,126 1,375,349 91,777
(184,493) 81,909 266,402
1,000 75 (925)

0 0 0
75,000 60,000 (15,000)
(55,000) {26,000) 29,000
21,000 34,075 13,075
{163,493) 116,984 279,477
226,703 226,703 0
7,185 7,185 0
$70,395 $349.872 $279,477

(continued)




Cily of Belpre, Ohio

;. : Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)

All Governmental Fund Types (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Special Revenue Funds

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {(Unfavorable}

Revenues:
Municipal Income Tax $0 $0 $0
Property and Other Taxes 0 0 0
Permissive Motor Vehicle License Taxes 31,500 35,796 4,296
Charges for Services 18,185 23,385 5,200
Fines, Licenses, and Permits 10,549 15,617 5,068
Intergovernmental 632,051 485,810 (146,241)
Interest 2,900 2,315 (585)
Other 14,400 23,815 9,415
Tofal Revenues 709,585 586,738 (122,847)
Expenditures:
Current;

Security of Persons and Property 64,575 40,096 24,479

Public Health Services 0 0 0

Leisure Time Activities 345,219 217,412 127,807

Transportation 378,843 359,999 18,344

General Government 36,676 36,136 540
Capital Qutlay 0 0 o
Debt Service:

Principal Retirerment 4,984 4,984 0

Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,494 1,494 0
Total Expenditures 831,791 660,121 171,670
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (122,206) (73,383) 438,823
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 0 0 0
Proceeds from Loans 0 0 0
Operating Transfers In 100,000 51,000 (49,000)
Operating Transfers Out 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 100,000 51,000 (49,000)
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Over

(Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (22,206) (22,383) armn
Fund Balances af Beginning of Year 99,481 099,481 0
Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances ' 26,095 26,095 0
Fund Balances at End of Year $103,370 $103,193 ($177)

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements
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Capital Projects Funds

Totals (Memeorandum Only)

Variance Variance
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable

Budget Aclual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$250,000 $250,000 30 $919,500 $930,263 $10,763
0 0 0 194,566 229,939 35,373

0 0 0 31,500 35,796 4,296

0 0 0 88,397 91,207 2,810

0 0 0 106,685 161,562 54,877
224,500 145,380 (79,120) 1,044,670 882,895 (161,775)

H 0 0 39,900 66,579 26,679
0 0 0 41,500 41,135 (365)
474,500 395,380 (79,120) 2,465,718 2,439,376 {27,342)

0 0 0 976,968 905,447 71,521

0 0 0 28,638 21,671 6,967

0 0 0 366,364 237,748 128,616

0 0 0 458,843 430,695 28,148

0 0 0 461,626 433,431 28,195
2,141,392 2,017,415 123,977 2,141,392 2,017,415 123,977
75,830 75,830 0 80,814 80,814 0
22,262 22,260 2 23,756 23,754 2
2,239,484 2,115,505 123,979 4,538,401 4,150,975 387,426
(1,764,984) (1,720,125) 44 859 (2,071,683) (1,711,599) 360,084
1,155,000 1,196,008 41,098 1,156,000 1,196,173 40,173
800,000 760,000 (40,000) 800,000 760,000 (40,000)
150,000 150,000 0 325,000 261,000 {64,000)
{112,516) {105,000 7.516 (167,516) {131,000) 36,516
1,992 484 2,001,098 8,614 2,113,484 2,086,173 (27,311)
227,500 280,973 53,473 41,801 374574 332,773
74,577 74 577 0 400,761 400,761 o

0 0 0 33,280 33,280 0
$302,077 $355,550 $53,473 $475,842 $808,615 $332,773
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Combined Slatement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Retained Eamings
Proprietary Fund Type
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services
Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefits

Contractual Services

Materials and Supplies

Depreciation

Tolal Operating Expenses

QOperating Incormne

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income Before Operating Transfers

Operaling Transfers in
Operaling Transfers Out

Net Income

Depreciation on Fixed Assets Acquired
by Contributed Capital

Retained Earnings at Beginning of Year (Restaled - Note 3)

Residual Equity Transfer Out

Retained Eamings al End of Year

Enterprise

$2,143,172
2,683

2,145,855
422,362
128,405

1,025,367
130,948
174,592

1,881,674

—_—

264,181

1,149
11,410

(10,261)
253,920

15,000
(145,000)

123,820

9,369
3,270,210
{6,680)

$3,396,819

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financiat statements
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Equity - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Proprietary Fund Type
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Enterprise Funds

Variance
Revised Faverable
- Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for Services $2,053,890 $2,116,161 $62,271
Tap-in Fees 7,500 29,390 21,890
Intergovernmental 725,000 405,500 (319,500)
Interest 1,149 1,149 0
Other Operating Revenues 379 2,683 2,304
Customer Deposits Received 7,500 10,450 2,950
Proceeds from Loans 1,567,000 233,000 (1,334,000)
Proceeds from {ssue |l Loans 0 13,313 13,313
Total Revenues 4,362,418 2,811,646 (1,550,772)
Expenses:
Current:
Salaries and Wages 410,686 408,275 4,411
Fringe Benefits 136,326 132,003 4,323
Materials and Supplies 1,180,342 1,142,897 37,445
Capital Outlay 2,549,712 1,329,255 1,220,457
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 85,465 73,278 12,187
Interest and Fiscal Charges 11,410 11,410 0
Customer Deposits Returned 6,000 2,355 3,645
Total Expenses 4,379 941 3,097 473 1,282,468
Excess of Revenues Under Expenses (17,523) (285,827) (268,304)
Operating Transfers In 30,750 15,000 (15,750)
Operating Transfers Out {170,000) (145,000) 25,000
Excess of Revenues Under
Expenses and Operating Transfers (156,773) (415,827) (259,054)
Fund Equity at Beginning of Year (Restated - Note x] 461,984 461,984 0
Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances 8,023 8,023 0
Fund Equity at End of Year $313,234 $54,180 ($259,054)

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial statements



City of Belpre, Ohio
Combined Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund Type
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash Received from Customers

Cash Payments for Employee Services and Benefits
Cash Payments for Goods and Services

Other Operating Revenues

Customer Deposits Received

Customer Deposits Returned

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Qut

Residual Equity Transfer

Repayment of Loan

Net Cash Used for Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Acquisition of Capital Assels

Proceeds from Issue Il Loans

Proceeds from Loans

Principal Paid on Debt

Interest Paid on Debt

Contributed Capital

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Interest on Loans Receivable

Purchase of Investments

Proceeds on Sale of Investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents af End of Year

14

_Enterprise _

$2,001,997
(537,704)
(1,153.942)
2,683
10,450

{2,355)
411,129

15,000
(145,000)
(6,680)
30,844

105,836

(887,255)
13,313
233,000
(73,278)
(11,410)
441,570

284,060

1,149
(50,000)
50,000

99,000
1,149
22,382
464,352
$486,734

(continued)



City of Belpre, Ohio
Combined Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund Type (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Enterprise
Reconciliation of Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Operating Income $264,181
Adjustments: :
Depreciation Expense 174,592
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Increase in Accounts Receivable {25,213)
Decrease in Due from Other Funds 7,563
Decrease in Materials and Supplies Inventory 327
Decrease in Prepaid Items 1,065
Increase in Accounts Payable 4,584
Decrease in Contracts Payable (39,505)
Increase in Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable 2,600
Increase in Compensated Absences Payable 13,487
Increase in Customer Deposits 8,095
Decrease in Intergovernmental Payabie (647)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $411,129

See accompanying notes to the general purpose financial staternents
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

NOTE 1 - REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Belpre (the "City") is a home-rule municipal corporation, incorporated under the laws of the State
of Ohio. The Cily is organized as a Mayor/Council form of govemnment. Located in the southern part of
Washington County, Belpre became a city in 1961.

The Mayor, Auditor, Treasurer, and Law Director, all with four year terms, and a seven member Council, with
two year terms, are elected. Department directors and public members of various boards and commissions are
appointed by the Mayor. .

The financial reporting entity consists of the primary govemment, component units, and other governmental
organizations included to ensure that the financial statements of the City are not misleading. Component units
are legally separate organizations for which the City is financially accountable. The City is financially
accountable for an organization if the City appoints a voting majority of the organization's goeverning board and
(1) the City is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization;
or (2) the City is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization's resources; the City is legally
obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to,
the organization; or the City is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also include
organizations that are fiscally dependent on the City in that the City approves the budget, the issuance of debt,
or the levying of taxes for the organization. No separate government units meet the criteria for inclusion as a
component unit.

The City provides various services including police protection, recreation (including parks), planning and zoning,
street maintenance and repair, water and water pollution control, and general administrative services. The
operation of each of these activities is directly controlled by the Council through the budgetary process. These
City operations form the fegal entity of the City and are included as the primary govemment.

The City is associated with the Community Action Program Corporation of Washington-Morgan Counties, Chio,

and the Wood, Washington, and Wirt Planning Commission which are defined as jointly governed organizations.
Additional information concerning the jointly governed organizations is presented in Note 21.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies followed in the preparation of these financia! statements are summarized
below. These policies conformto generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) forlecal governmental units
as prescribed in the statements issued by the Governmental Accountling Standards Board and other recognized
authoritative sources. The City applies Financial Accounting Standards Board statements and interpretations
issued prior to November 30, 1989, to proprietary activities provided they do not conflict with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board statements and interpretations.

A Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The City uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position and the resutts of ils
operations. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial
management by segregating transactions related to cerlain City functions or adtivities.

A fund is defined as a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash
and other financial resources, together with all related liabilities and residual equities or balances, and
changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attaining
certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions, or limitations. An account group
is a financial reporting device designed to provide accountability for cerlain assets and liabilities that
are not recorded in the funds because they do not directly affecl net expendable available financial
reSOUrces.
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City of Belpre, Chio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

For financial statement presentation purposes, the various funds of the City are grouped into the
following generic fund types underthe broad fund categories - govemmental, proprietary, and fid uciary.

Governmental Fund Types:

Govemmental funds are those through which most governmental functions ofthe City are financed. The
acquisition, use, and balances of the City's expendable financial resources and the related current
liabilities (except those accounted for in the proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental
funds. The following are the City's governmental fund types:

General Fund - This fund is the operating fund ofthe City and is used to account for all financia}
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The general fund balance
is available to the City for any purpose provided itis expended or transferred according to the
general laws of Ohio.

Special Revenue Funds - These funds are established to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than amounts relating to major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Funds - These funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
proprietary funds),

Proprietary Fund Type:

Proprietary funds are used to account for the City's ongoing activities which are similar to those found
in the private sector. The following is the City's proprietary fund type:

Enterprise Funds - These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that costs
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing services to the general public on a continuing
basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges or where it has been decided
that periodic determination of revenues eamed, expenses incurred, and/or net income is

appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, orother
purposes.

Fiduciary Fund Type:

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organization, othergovermental units, and/or other funds. The City's only fiduciary

funds are agency funds. Agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not
involve measurement of results of operations.

Account Groups:

To make a clear distinction between fixed assets related 1o specific funds and those of general
government, and between long-term liabilities related to specific funds and those of a general nature,
the following account groups are typically used:

General Fixed Assets Account Group - to account for all general fixed assets of the City other
than those accounted for in proprietary funds.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group - to account for all unmatured long-term
indebtedness of the Cily that is not a specific liability of proprietary funds.
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and reporling treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement facus. All
governmental fund types are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included
on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, all assets and all fiabilities associated with the operation of these funds are
included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net total assets) is typically segregated into
contributed capital and retained eamings components. Proprietary fund type operaling statements
present increases {g.g., revenues) and decreases (g.g., expenses) in net total assets.

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made,

All govemmental fund types and agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this basis, revenues are recognizedin the accounting period when they hecome both
measurable and available. Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
available means colledtible within the current year or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current year. The available period for the City is sidy days afler year end.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue
sources are deemed both measurable and available: invesiment eamings, state-levied lacally shared
taxes (including gasoline tax), fines and forfeilures, and income tax (the employer withheld amounts
measurable at December 31, 1999).

The City reports deferred revenues on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues arise when a
potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current
period. In the subsequent peried, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, the liability for
defetred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized. The
delinquent income taxes and current and delinquent property taxes measurable as of December 31,
1999, whose availability is indeterminate and which are not intended to finance current period
obligations, have been recorded as a receivable and deferred revenue.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is
incurred. Principal and interest on general long-term obligations are recorded as fund liabilities when
due, and the costs of accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave are reported as fund liabilities in the
period in which they will be liquidated with available financial resources rather than in the period eamed
by employees. Allocations of cast, such as depreciation and amortization, are not recognized in the
govemmental funds.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized for reporting purposes by the proprietary fund type.
Revenues are recognized when they are eamed and become measurable and expenses are recognized
when they are incurred, if measurable. Unbilled service charges receivable are recognized as revenue
at year end.
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

Budgetary Procass

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and entails the preparation
of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The major documents prepared are the tax
budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the appropriation ordinance, all of which are
prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting.  The cerificate of estimated resources and the
appropriations ordinance are subject to amendment throughout the year with the legal restriction that
appropriations cannot exceed estimated resources, as certified. All funds, other than agency funds, are
legally required to be budgeted and appropriated. The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund
level. Any budgetary modifications at this level may only be made by resolution of the City Council.

Tax Budget: During the first Council meeting in July, the Mayor presents the annual operating budget
for the following year to City Council for consideration and passage. The adopted budget is submitted
to the County Auditor, as Secretary of the County Budget Commission, by July 20, of each year, for the
period January 1 to December 31 of the following year.

Estimated Resources: The County Budget Commission determines ifthe budget substantiates a need
to levy all or part of previously authorized taxes and reviews estimated revenue. The Commission
certifies its actions to the City by September 1. As part of this certification, the City receives the official
cerificate of estimated resources, which states the projected revenue of each fund. Priorto December
31, the City must revise its budget so that the total contemplated expenditures from any fund during the
ensuing year will not exceed the amount available as stated in the cerificate of estimated resources.
The revised budget then serves as the basis for the annual appropriation ordinance. On or about
January 1, the cetificate of estimated resources is amended to include unencumbered fund balances
at December 31 of the preceding year. The certificate may be further amended during the year if
revenue fluctuations are anticipated. The amounts reported on the budgetary statement reflect the
amounts in the final amended official certificate of estimated resources issued during 1999,

Appropriations: A temporary appropriation ordinance to control expenditures may be passed on or
about January 1 of each year for the period January 1to March 31. An annual appropriation ordinance
must be passed by April 1 of each year for the period January 1 to December 31. The appropriation
ordinance fixes spending authority at the fund level. The appropriation ordinance may be amended
during the year as new information becomes available, provided that total fund appropriations do not
exceed cument estimated resources, as certified. The allocation of appropriations among departments
and objects within a fund may be modified during the year by the City Auditor without an ordinance of
Council. During the year, several supplemental appropriation measures were passed. None of these
supplemental appropriations had any significant effect on the original appropriations. The budget
figures which appear in the statements of budgetary comparisons represent the final appropriation
amounts, including all amendments and modifications.

Encumbrances: As part of formal budgetary control, purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded as the equivalent of expenditures on the
non-GAAP budgetary basis in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation and to
determine and maintain legal compliance. The Ohie Revised Code prohibits expenditures plus
encumbrances from exceeding appropriations. On the GAAP basis, encumbrances outsta nding atyear
end are reported as reservations of fund balances for subsequent-year expenditures for governmental
funds and are reported in the notes to the financial statements for proprietary funds.

Lapsing of Appropriations: At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of each appropriation
reverts to the respective fund from which it was appropriated and becomes subject to future

appropriations. The encumbered appropriation balance is carried forward to the succeeding year and
is not reappropriated.




City of Belpre, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

Cash and Cash Equivalents

To improve cash management, cash received by the City is pooled. Monies for all funds, including
proprietary funds, are maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is maintained through the City's
records. Each fund's interest in the poolis presented as "Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents™
on the Combined Balance Sheet.

During 1999, investments were limited to a cerlificate of deposit and repurchase agreements, which are
reported at cost.

Investment procedures are restricted by the provisions ofthe Ohio Revised Code. During 1999, interest
from investments was distributed to the General Fund and certain special revenue funds. Interest
revenue credited to the General Fund during 1999 amounted to $86,074, which includes $53,371
assigned from other City funds.

The City has a segregated bank account for monies held separate from the City's central bank account.
This depository account is presented in the Combined Balance Sheet as "Cash and Cash Equivalents
in Segregated Accounts” since it is not required to be deposited into the City's treasury.

For purposes of the combined statement of cash flows and for presentation on the combined balance
sheet, investments of the cash management pool and investments with an original maturity of three
months orless are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments with an initial maturity of more than
three months not purchased from the pool are reported as investments.

Inventory

Inventories of governmental funds are stated at cost while inventories of proprietary funds are stated
at the lower of cost or market. For all funds, cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis. The costs
of inventory items are recorded as expenditures in the governmental fund types when purchased and
as expenses in the proprietary fund type when used. Reported materials and supplies inventory is
equally offset by a fund batance reserve in the govemmental funds which indicates that it does not
constitute available spendable resources even though it is a component of net current assets.

Prepaid ltems

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 1999, are
recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method by recording a current asset for the prepaid
amount and reflecting the expenditurefexpense in the year in which services are consumed.
Reslricted Assets

Restricted assets in the enterprise funds represent customer deposits.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

General fixed assets are not capitalized in the funds used to acquire or construct them. Instead, capital
acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in govermmental funds, and the related assels
are reporied in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Fund fixed assels (asseis used to provide
the services accounted for in the enterprise funds) are reported in the respective funds. All purchased
fixed assels are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost
when no historical records exist. Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value
on the date received.
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The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the
remaining useful lives of fund fixed assets.

Public domain (“infrastructure”) general fixed assets consisting of roads, bridges, curbs and gutiers,
streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, and lighting systems are not capitalized, as these assets are
immovable and of value only to the City.

Assets in the General Fixed Assets Account Group are not depreciated. Depreciation in the proprietary
fund type is computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Buildings 50 years
Improvements other than Buildings 20- 30 years
Infrastructure 65 years
Machinery and Equipment 5 - 20 years
Vehicles 8 years

Interfund Assets and Liabilities

Short-term interfund loans or the short-term portion of advances are classified as "Interfund
Receivables/Payables.” The City has no interfund receivables/payables at December 31,1999,

Amounts owed to a particular fund by another fund for goods or services rendered are classified as
"Due from Other Funds/Due to Other Funds."

Compensated Absences

GASB Statement 16, "Accounting for Compensated Absences", specifies the methods used to accrue
liabilities for leave benefits. Vacalion benefits are accrued as a liability as the benefits are eamed if
the employees’ rights to receive compensation are atlributable to services already rendered and it is
probable that the City will compensate the employees for the benefits through paid time off or some
other means. Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the vesting method. The liability
includes the employees who are currently eligible to receive termination benefits and those the City has
identified as probable of receiving payment in the future. The amount is based on accumulated sick

leave and employees' wage rates at year end, taking into consideration any limits specified in the City's
termination policy.

The City records a liability for accumulated, unused vacation time when eamed for all employees who
have completed their probation period. The City records a liability for accumulated, unused sick leave
afler one year of service for employees under the City's policy and afier ten years of service for
employees under the union contracts. For govemmental funds, the cumrent portion of unpaid
compensated absences is the amount expected to be paid using expendable available resources.
These amounts are recorded in the account "Compensated Absences Payable” in the fund from which
the employees who have accumulated unpaid leave are paid. The remainderis reported in the General

Long-Term Obligations Account Group. In proprietary funds, the entire amount of compensated
absences is reported as a fund liability.




City of Belpre, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

Contnbuted Capital

Contributed capital represents resources from other funds, other governments and customers provided
to enterprise funds that is not subject to repayment. These assets are recorded at their fair market
value on the date contributed. Tap-in fees are recorded as contributed capital to the extent they exceed
the actual costs of the connection to the water system. Depreciation on those assels acquired or
constructed with contributed resources is expensed and closed to unreserved retained eamings at year
end except for depreciation on assets acquired through grants, which is expensed and closed to
contributed-capital at year end. S

‘Because the City had not prepared financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles prior to 1997, the exact amount of contributed capital pertaining to prior years
cannot be determined. Consequently, only those amounts that have been able to be identified have
been classified as contributed capital in the accompanying combined financial statements. Al other
fund equity amounts pertaining to the proprietary funds have been classified as retained eamings.

Intergovernmental Revenues

For govemmental funds, intergovernmental revenues, such as granis awarded on a
non-reimbursement  basis, shared revenues, and entitlements, are recorded as' receivahles and
revenues when measurable and available. Reimbursement-type grants are recorded as receivables
and revenues when the related expenditures are incurred. Grants, entitlements, or shared revenues
received for proprietary fund operating purposes are recognized as non-operating revenues in the
accounting period in which they are eamed and become measurable.

Fund Equity

Reserves represent those portions of fund equity not appropriable for expenditure or legally segregated
for a specific future use. Fund balances are reserved for encumbrances, unclaimed monies, and
inventories of materials and supplies. Under Ohio law, unclaimed monies are not available for
appropriation until they have remained unclaimed for five years.

Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City had numerous transactions between funds. The most
_ significant include operating transfers and reimbursements. '

1. Trénsfers df resources from one fund to andther fund through which resources are to be
expended are recorded as operating transfers.

2. Reimbursements from one fund to another fund are treated as expenditures/expenses in the
reimbursing fund and a reduction in expenditures/expenses in the reimbursed fund. '

Nonrecurring of nonroutine permanent transfers of equity are reported as residual equily transfers. All
other interfund transfers are reported as operating transfers. During 1999, the Water Enterprise Fund
transferred $8,680 to the Sewer Enterprise Fund, which was reflected as Contributed Capital in this
fund. Therefore, residual equity transfers in and out do not equal on the Combined Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Retained Earnings. '
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Q. Long-Termmn Obligations

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities are reported as obligations of the funds
regardless of whether they will be liquidated with current resources. However, claims and judgements,
compensated absences, special termination benefits, and contractually required pension contributions
are reported as a liability in the General Long-Term.Obligations Account Group to the exient that they
will not be paid with current expendable available financial resources. Payments made more than sixty
days after year end are generally considered not to have been paid with current available financial
resources. Capital leases and long-term loans are recognized as a liability of the General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group until due. '

Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the
appropriate proprietary funds.

P. Capitalization of Interest

The City's policy is to capitalize net interest on proprietary fund construction projects until substantial
completion of the project. The amount of capitalized interest equals the difference between the interest
cost associated with the tax/exempt borrowing used to finance the project and interest eamed from
temmporary investments on the debt proceeds. Capitalized interest is amortized on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the asset,

For 1999, interest costs incumred on construction projects of the propristary fund were not material. .
Q. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

R. Total Columns on General Purpose Financial Statements

Totat columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned memorandum only {o indicate
that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these columns do not present
financial position or results of operations in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Neither is such data comparable to a consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the
aggregation of this data.

NOTE 3 - RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR BALANCES

During 1999, the City determined that the previously reported Marina Capital Projects Fund should be reporied
with the Parks Special Revenue Fund, cash needed restated in the Pool Enterprise Fund and Parks Special
Revenue Fund, fixed assets needed adjusted in the Water Enterprise Fund, and the Issue 1l Paving Loan and
Fire Truck Loan should be reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Some of these

adjustments had the following effects on excess of revenues over (under) expenditures as previously reported
as of December 31, 1998:
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Special Capital

Revenue Projects
Excess as Previously Reported ($45,4&7)  $50,143
Movement of Marina Fund {1,365) - 1,365
Loan Reclassifications 0 449 500
Restated Excess - December at, 1995' ($46.85 ) __$_§01!

The adjustments referred to above had the following effects on fund balance/retained eamings as it was
previously reported at December 31, 1998:

Special Capital
Revenue Projects -
Balances as Previously Reported $165,677 ($347,956)
Movement of Marina Fund 120 (120)
Cash Restatement 7,470 0
Loan Reclassifications 0 449,500
Restated Balances - January 1, 1999 $173,267 $101,424
Enterprise
Balance as Previously Reporied $3,280,620
Fixed Assets Adjustment (2,040)
Cash Restatement (7.470)
Restated Balance - January 1, 1999 -$3,270,210

Due to the loan reclassrﬁcattons the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group was restated at January
1, 1999, from $89,835 {0 $539,335,

NOTE 4 - ACCOUNTABILITY

The City Building Construction Capital Projects Fund had a deficit fund balance of $26,288 due o the
recognition of accrued liabilities. The deficit will be alleviated when the final draw is made from the City Building
Loan.
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NOTE 5 - BUDGETARY BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

While reporting financial position, results of operations, and changes in fund balance/retained eamings on the
basis of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP basis), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based
upon accounting for fransactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Chariges in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budget
Basis) - Al Govemmental Fund Types and the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in
Fund Equity - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis) - Proprietary Fund Type are presented on the budgetary basis
to provide a comparison of actual results with the-budget and to demonstrate compliance with State statite.
The major differences between the budget basis and the GAAP basis are:

t.

Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budget) as opposed towhen susceptible to accrual
(GAAP). _

Expenditures/expenses are recorded when paid in cash (budget) as opposed to when the liability
is incurred (GAAP).

Outstanding year end encumbrances are treated as expenditures/expenses (budget) rather than
as a reservation of fund balance for governmental fund types and as note disclosure for the
proprietary fund type (GAAP).

Proceeds from and principal payment on short-term note obligations are reported on the operating
staterment (budget) rather than on the balance sheet (GAAP).

For proprietary funds, the acquisition and construction of capital assets are reporled on the
operating statement (budget) rather than as balance sheet transactions (GAAP).

Unreported cash represents amounts received but not included as revenue on the budget basis

operating statements. These amounts are included as revenue on the GAAP basis operaling
statements.

Adjustments necessary to convert the resulis of operations at the end of the year on the Budget Basis to the
GAAP basis are as follows:
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Excess of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
All Govenmental Funds Types
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Special Capital
General Revenue Projects
GAAP Basis $161,667 ($41,614) $256,849
Adjustments: _
Revenue Accruals (50,398) 58,569 (2,782)
Unreported Cash 12,492 1,024 0
Prepaids 14,996 4,003 a
Expenditure Accruals (22,152) (50,689) 29,424
Disbursements Against , :
Prior Year Encumbrances 6,114 15,659 8,226
Encumbrances ' (6,735) (7,335) (10,744)
Budget Basis $115,984 ($22.38) $280,973
Net Income/Excess of Revenues
Under Expenses and Operating Transfers
Proprietary Fund Type
_Enterprise _
GAAP Basis $123,920
. Adjustmenté:
Revenue Accruals (27,011)
Customer Deposits 8,005 .
Contributed Capital 434,890
Prepaids ' 4,622
Expense Accruals 16,984
Depreciation 174,592
Proceeds of Notes 233,000
Proceeds of l.oans 13,313
Debt Principal Retirement (73,278)
Capital Outlay (887,255)
Disbursements Against
Prior Year Encumbrances 31,644
Encumbrances (469,343)
Budget Basis ($415,827)
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NOTE 6 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

State statutes classify monies held by the Cily into three categories.

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the treasury. Such monies must be
maintained either as cash in the City treasuiry, in commerdial accounts payable or withdrawable on demand,
including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.-

Inactive deposits are public deposits that Council has identified as not required for use within the current two
year period of designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by certificates of deposit
maturing not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit
accounts including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies which are not needed for
immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories.
Interim deposits must be evidenced by time cerificates of deposit maturing not more than one year from the
date of deposit or by savings or deposit accounts including pass book accounts.

Protection of the City's deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), by eligible
securities pledged by the financial institution as security for repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with
the treasurer by the financial institution, or by a single collateral pool established by the financial institution to
secure the repayment of all public moneys deposited with the institution.

Interim monies to be deposited or invested in the following securities:

t. United States Treasury Notes, Bills, Bonds, or any other obligation or security issued by the
United State Treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal and interest by the
United States;

2. Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal

government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the Federal National
Morlgage Association, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home
Loan Morigage Corporation, Govemment National Mortgage Association, and Student Loan
Marketing Association. All federal agency securities shall be direct issuances of federal
govemment agencies or instrumentalities; '

3. Wiritten repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market value
of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement exceeds the principal value of the
agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and that the term of the
agreement must not exceed thirty days;

4, Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio:

5. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in division
(1) or (2) of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that
investments in securities described in this division are made only through eligible institutions;
and,

6. The State Treasurer's investment pool (STAR Ohio).
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The City may also invest any monies not required to be used fora period of six months or-more in the following:

1. Bonds of the State of Ohio;

2. Bonds of any municipal corporation, village, county, township, or other political subdivision of
this State, as to which there is not default of principal, interest, or coupons; and,

3. Obligations of the City.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements, and derivalives are
prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of arbitrage, the use ofleverage and short selling are
also prohibited. An investment must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a
specific obligation or debt of the City, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity.

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for investments may be
made only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the treasurer or qualified trustee or,
ifthe securities are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian.

The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of risk as defined in GASB
Statement No. 3, “Deposits with Financial Instititions, Investments (including Repurchase Agreements), and
Reverse Repurchase Agreements.” : -

' Deposils: At year end, the carrying amount of the City's deposits was $158,001 and the bank balance was

$347,112. Of the bank balance, $189,423 was covered by federal depository insurance and $157,689 was
uninsured and uncollateralized. Although the securitiés serving as cofateral were held by the pledging financial
institutions' frust department in the City's name and all State statutory requirements for the deposit of money
had been followed, noncompliance with federal requirements could potentially subject the City to a successful
claim by the FDIC. : g

Investments: The City's investments are required to be categorized to give an indication of the level of risk
assumed by the City at year end. Category 1 includes investmeénts that are insured or registered or for which
the securities are held by the City or its agent in the City's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty’s trust department or agent in the
City's name, Category 3.includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by
the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the City's name. -

Category Canying Fair
3 Value Value

Repurchase Agreement $1,267,000 $1,267,000  $1,267,174

The classification of 'Césh and Cash Equivalents” and "Investments” on the combined financial statements is
based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9, "Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Non-Expendable
Trust Funds and Govemmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting.”

A reconciliation between the classifications of cash and cash equivalents and investments on the combined

financial statements and the classifications of deposits and investments presented above per GASB Statement
No. 3 is as follows:
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Cash and Cash R
Equivalents/Deposits Investments
GASB Statement 9 © $1,375,201 $50,000
Petty Cash {200) 0
Investments: :
Repurchase Agreement (1,267,000) 1,267,000
Certificate of Deposit 50,000 (50,000)
GASB Statement 3 $158,001 $1,267,000

NOTE 7 - PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes include amounts Jevied against all real and public utility property, and tangible personal property
located in the City. Property tax revenue received during 1999 for real and public utility properly taxes
represents collections of 1998 taxes. Property tax payments received during 1999 fortangible personal property
{other than public utility property) is for 1999 taxes. :

1899 taxes collected from real property taxes (other than public utility) are levied after Octeber 1, 1999 on the
assessed value as of January 1, 1999, the lien date, Assessed values are established by State Law at 35
percent of appraised market value. 1999 real property taxes are intended to finance 2000. All property is
required to be revalued every six years. The last revaluation was completed in 1999. Real property taxes are
payable annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is due December 31; if paid semi-annually, the
first payment is due December 31, with the remainder payable by June 20. Under certain circumstances, state
statue permits later payment dates to be established., : :

1999 taxes collected on tangible personal property (other then public utility) are levied after October 1, 1998,
onthe value as of December 31, 1998. Collections are made in 1999, Tangible personal property assessmenis
are 25 percent of true value. Tangible personal property taxes paid by multi-county taxpayers are due
September 20. Single county taxpayers may pay annually or semi-annually. If paid annually, payment is due
April 30; if paid semi-annually, the first payment is due Aprif 30, with the remainder payable by September 20.

1999 public utility real and tangible personal property taxes become a lien December 31, 1998, are levied after
October 1, 1999, and are collected in 2000 with real property taxes. Public utility tangible personal property

currently is at various percentages of true value; public utility real property is assessed at 35 percent of true
value, .

The County Treasurer collects property taxes on behaf of all taxing districts in the County, including the City
of Belpre. The County Auditor periodically remits to the City its portion of the taxes collecled. Property taxes
receivable represent real and tangible personal property taxes, public utility taxes, and outstanding
delinguencies which are measurable as of December 31, 1999. Although total property tax collections for the
next year are measurable, amounts to be received during the available period are not subject {o reasonable
estimation at December 31, nor are they intended to finance 1999 operations. The receivable is offset by
deferred revenue,

The assessed value upon which the 1999 {axes were collected was $77,956,630. Real estate represented 87
percent ($67,820,000) of this total, pubic utility tangible personal property represented 5 percent ($3,672,170),
and general tangible personal property represented 8 percent ($6,464,460). The full tax rate for all City

operations applied to taxable property for the year ended December 31, 1999, was $3.40 per $1,000 of assessed
valuation. :

*
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NOTE 8 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at December 31, 1999, consisted of taxes, accounts (billings for user charged services including
unbilled utility services), loans, intergovernmental, and accrued interest receivables arising from grants,
entitiements, and shared revenues. The Water Enterprise Fund reflects loans receivable of $16,084. This
amount is for a loan owed to the City from Shell Qil Company for services rendered by the City for the company
to give them increased water pressure. The loan was made on Decernber 21 , 1898, and is to be repaid by Shell
Oil Company over three years at 5.71 percent interest. All receivables are considered collectible in full.

A summary of the principal items of intergovemmental receivables follows:

Intergovermmental Receivables - Amount
General Fund; ,
Estate Tax $29.405
Local Government Tax 9,886
Health State Subsidy 2,182

Total Generat Fund

41,473

" Special Revenue Funds:

- Drug Awareness Reduction Education Grant _ 9,576
Gasoline Tax ' 8,544
Excise Tax : : 4,336

Motor Vehicle License Tax 4,081

Total Special Revenue Funds

26,537

Total ' $68,010

NOTE 9 - INCOME TAX

The City' fevies a municipal income tax of one percent on su'b'stantially all eamed income arising from
ermnployment or business activities within the City as well as income of residents earned outside of the City.

Employers within the City are required to withhold income tax on employee compensation and remit the tax to
the City either monthly or quarterly, as required. Corporations and other individual taxpayers are required to
pay their estimated tax quarlerly and file a declaration annually. Income tax proceeds are distributed to funds
in the following manner: ' ' :

1. All proceeds needed to defray the costs of collecting the tax and the cost of administering and
enforcing the tax to the General Fund; ,

2. All proceeds needed for paymeﬁt ofthe Belpre Volunteer Fire Department’s expenses related
to the Fire Chief and the volunteer firemen's clothing allowances to the General Fund;

3. All remaining income tax proceeds are set aside and allocated 60% to the General Fund and
40% to the Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund.

4., Income tax proceeds allocated each year to the Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund is
limited per City Ordinance, with all tax proceeds thereafter distributed 100% to the General
Fund.
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NOTE 10 - FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

A summéry of the enterprise funds' properly, plant, and equipm_ent at December 31, 1929, follows:

Pool Sewer Water Total

Land $11,243 $45,393 $138,536 $195172
Buildings 152,281 1,546,202 651,370 2,349,853
Improvements

other than Buildings 116,129 28,389 42958 . 187,476
Infrastructure 0 1,022,384 1,231,460 2,253,844
Machinery and Equipment 4,190 1,303,628 471,800 1,779,618
Vehicles , 0 198,460 85,307 283,767
Construction in Progress 0 1] 626,626 626,626
Total 283,843 4,144,456 3,248,057 1,676,356

Less: Accumulated Debreciation {141,396) (2,282,279) (1,131,814) (3,555,489)

Net Fixed Assels $142 447 $1,862.177 $2.116,243 $4.120,867

A summary of the changes in general fixed assets during 1999 follows:; '

Balance Balance

12-31-98 Additions Reductions 12-31-99
Land $1,202,441 $402,782 $391,929 $1,213,294
Buildings 1,277,499 1,392,788 0 2,870,287
Improvements other
than Buildings 792,308 0 0 792,308
Machinery and Equipment 984,860 46,056 0 1,030,916
Vehicles 1,272,613 __ 55787 113,056 1.215324

Total $5,529,721 $1,897,393 $504 985 $6,922,129

During 1999, the City sold its old C'ity building land, land known as the "gravel pit", and portions of the salvage
yard the City purchased to expand the wastewater treatment facility and recreation areas. The proceeds from
these sales alone amounted to $1,191,764.

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks ofloss retated to lorts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assels; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City contracts with Gulf Insurance Company,

through the Barengo Insurance Agency, for a blanket insurance policy with the following coverage limits and
deductibles: : :



. o City of Belpre, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Staternents

December 31, 1999
Properly Limit __ Deductible
Building and Contents $11,022,736 , $500
Earthquake 1,000,000 25,000
Boiler and Machinery 100,000 500
Valuable Papers and Records 250,000 0
Business Income 100,000 0
Accounts Recelvable _ 250,000 0
Power Interruption . 25,000 0
Backup of Sewers and Drains 25,000 0
Computer Equipment 250,000 0
Building Ordinance or Law 250,000 o
Extra Expenses 500,000 0
Liability Limit Aggregate  Deductible
General $1,000,000 Per Occurrence  $3,000,000 $0
Employee Benefits 1,000,000 Per Occurrence 3,000,000 1,000
Public Officials Wrongful Acts 1,000,000 Per Occurrence 2,000,000 2,500
rPoIice Professional 1,000,000 Per Occurrence 2,000,000 2,500
Vehicles Limit
Liability $1,000,000
Medical Expense 5,000
Uninsured/Underinsured : 1,000,000
Hired Car Physical Damage 35,000
Employee or Volunteer Auto 500
Comprehensive Deductible --$100
Collision Deductible - $250
Crime Limit Deductible
Inside/Outside $10,000 - $250
Employee Dishenesty Blanket _ : 50,000 - 0
Forgery.and Alterations - ' 50,000 -0
Inland Marine _ Limit ~  Deductible
Property not Licensed for Highway Use $1,145,568 $500
Borrowed, Leased, or Rented Equipment 100,000

~ Settlements have not exceeded coverage in any of the last three years. There have been no significant
reduclions in insurance coverage from last year. .

The City pays the State Worker's Compensaﬁbn System a premium for employee injury coverage based on a
rate per $100 of salaries. This rate is calculated based on accident history and administrative costs,
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NOTE 12 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

A.

Public Employees Retirement System

All City fulHime employees, other than non-administrative full-time uniformed police officers and
firemen, participate in the Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS), a cost-sharing
multiple-employer public employee refirement system administered by the Public Employees
Retirement Board. PERS provides basic retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments, and death benefils to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by
Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code. PERS issues a stand-alone financial report which may be
obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio
43215-4642.

Plan members are required to contribute 8.5 percent of their annual covered salary to fund pension
obligations and the City is required to contribute 9.35 percent. Contributions are authorized by State
statute. The City's required contributions to PERS for the years ended December 31, 1999, 1998, and
1997, were $90,979, $84,949, and $70,903, respeclively. The full amount has been contributed for
1998 and 1997. 72.67 percent has been contributed for 1999 with the remainder being reported as a
fund liability.

Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund

The City contributes to the Police’ and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund of Ohio (PFDPF)}, a
cost-sharing multiple employer public employee retirement system administered by PFDPF’s Board of
Trustees. PFDPF provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provision are established by the Ohio State
Legislature and by Chapter 742 ofthe Ohio Revised Code. PFDPF issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial information and required supplementary information. That report may be
oblained by writing to the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund of Ohio, 140 East Town
Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215. -

Police and firefighters are required to contribute 10 percent of their annual covered salary to fund
pension obligations and the City is required to contribute 12.5 percent for police and 17 percent for
firefighters. Contributions are authorized by State statute. The City’s contributions to PEDPF for police
and firefighters were $44,151 and $5,099 for the year ended December 31, 1999, $42,773 and $4,834
for 1998, and $44,172 and $4,680 for 1997. The full amount has been contributed for 1998 and 1997,

71.46 percentand 71.62 percent, respectively, have been contributed for 1999 with the remainder being
reported as a fund liability.

In addition to the current contribution, the City pays installments on the accrued liability incurred when
the State of Ohio established the statewide pension system for police in 1967. As of December 31,
1999, the unfunded liability ofthe City was $23,774, payable in semiannual payments through the year
2035. This is an accounting liability of the City which will not vary. The liability is reported in the
General Long-Tenm Obligations- Account Group.
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NOTE 13 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A.

Public Employees Retirement System

The Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS) provides postretirement health care
coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying Chio service credit and to
primary survivor recipients of such retirees. Health care coverage for disability recipients is availabie.
The health care coverage provided by the retirement system Is considered an Other Postemployment
Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB- Statement No. 12. A portion of each employer's contribution
to PERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement health care based on authority granted by State
statute. The 1999 employer contribution rate was 13.55 percent of covered payroll; 4.2 percent was
the portion that was used to fund heatlth care.

Benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. OPEB are financed through employer contributions and
investment eamings. The contributions allocated to retiree- héalth care and Medicare, along with
investmentincome on allocated assets and periodic adjustmentsin health care provisions, are expected
to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely. During 1899, OPEB expenditures made by PERS
were $523,599,349. As of December 31, 1999, the unaudited estimated net assets available for future
OPEB payments were $9,870,285,641. At December 31, 1999, the total number of benefit recipients
eligible for OPEB through PERS was 118,062. The City'’s actual contnbutlons for 1999 whlch were used
to fund OPEB were $40,868.

During 1997, FERS adopted a new calculation method for determining-employer contributions applied
fo OPEB.. Under the new method, effective January 1, 1298, employer contributions, equal to 4.2
percent of member covered payroll, are used to fund health care expenses. Under the prior method,
accrued liabilities and normal cost rales were determined for retiree heatth coverage.

Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund

The Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund (PFDPF) provides postretirement health care
coverage to any person who receives or is eligible to receive a monthly benefit check or is a spouse
or eligible dependent child of such person. An eligible dependent child is any child underthe age of 18
whether or not the child is attending school or under the age of 22 if altending school full-time or on a

2/3 basis.

- The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other Postemployment

Benefit as described in GASB Statement No. 12.. The Ohio Revised Code provides the authority
aliowing the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension Fund's board oftrustees to provide health care
coverage and states that health care cost paid from the Police and Firemen's Disability and Pension
Fund shall be included in the employer’s contribution rate. Health care funding and accounting is on
a pay-as-you-go basis. The total police employer contribution is 19.5 percent of covered payroll and
the total firefighter employer contribution rate is 24 percent of covered payroll, of which 7 percent of
covered payroll is applied to the postemployment health care program, an increase from 6.5 percent
in 1988. In addition, since July 1, 1992, most retirees have been required to contribute a portion of the
cost of their health care coverage through a deduction from their monthly benefit payment.

The City'’s actual contributions for 1999 that were used to fund postemployment benefits were $22,958
for police and $1,950 for fire. PFDPF's tolal health care expenses for the year ended December 31,
1988, (the latest information available) were $78,596,790. The number of PFDPF participants eligible
to receive health care benefits as of December 31, 1998, was 11,424 for police and 9,186 for
firefighters.
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NOTE 14 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A. Additional Insurance

The City provides $15,000 in life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment insurance to its
full-time employees, other than policemen, and for all elected officials. The insurance is through

Anthem Life Insurance for non-union employees and through the AFSME Care Plan for AFSME union
members.

The City provides comprehensive major medical insurance for full time employees under two plans
through Aetna Life & Casualty and the United Food & Commercial Worker's Union for the policemen.
The City pays 85% of the total monthly premium for the first plan and 100% of the monthly premium
for the second plan. Premiums are paid from the same funds that pay the employees’ salaries.

B. Compensated Absences

The criteria for determining vested vacation and sick leave components are derived from negotiated
agreements and State laws. Upon separation or retirement, all non-union employees are paid 100%
of their sick leave up to a maximum of 240 hours. Upon retirement, all union employees with ten or
more years of service with the City are paid twenty-five percent of their sick leave up to a maximum
0f 240 hours; however, union employees underthe American Federation of State, County and Municipal
Employees with twenty or more years of service are paid twenty-five percent of their sick leave upto
a maximum of 300 hours. Upon voluntary termination, death, or retirement, alt employees will receive
100% of vacation eamed and not previously taken.

NOTE 15 - CAPITALIZED LEASES - LESSEE DISCLOSURE

In 1997, the City entered into a capitalized lease for a telephone system. This lease meets the criteria of a
capital lease as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, "Accounting for Leases,” which
defines a capital lease generally as one which transfers benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee. Capital
lease payments have been reclassified and are reflected as debt service expenditures in the general purpose
financial statements. These expenditures are reflected as program expenditures on a budgetary basis.

Fixed assets acquired by lease have been capitalized in the General Fixed Assets Account Groupinthe amouht
of $8,300, which is equal to the present value of the future minimum lease payments at the time of acquisition.
A corresponding kability was recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments required under the capital lease and the
present value of the minimum lease payments as of December 31, 1999,

Amount
Year Ending 2000 $2,288
Less: Amount Representing Interest (60)

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $2.228
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NOTE 16 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Changes in long-term obligations of the City for the year ended December 31, 1999, were as follows:

Outstanding Outstanding
12-31-98 Additions Reductions 12-31-99

Enterprise Obligations:

Water Loan - 5.71% $0  $233,000 $73,278 $159,722
Issue || Water Well - 2% _0 13,313 0 13,313
Total Enterprise Obligations . 0 _ 246313 73278 173,035
General Long-Term Obligations:
Loans: ,

Fire Truck Loan - 4.8% 375,000 0 75,000 300,000

Property Loan - 6% 0 400,000 830 399,170

City Buikling Loan - 5.42% 0 360,000 0 360,000
Police Pension Liability 24,059 0 285 23,774
Capital Lease Payable 5,037 0 2,809 2228
Issue Il Paving Loan - 2% 74,500 0 4,084 69,516
Compensated Absences 60,739 60,336 55,204 85871
Total General Long-Term Obligations 539,335 820,336 139,112 1,220,559
Total Long-Temm Obligations $539,335  $1,066,649 $212,390  $1,393,504

The police pension liability wifl be paid from general property tax revenues from the General Fund. The police
pension liability payments are reflecled as program expenditures on a budgetary basis and in the operating
statement. The capital lease payable will be paid from the General Fund. The Capital Improvement Capital
Projects Fund received the fire truck loan and property foan proceeds. The fire truck loan will be repaid from
income tax revenues of the Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund. The property loan will be repaid from
income tax revenues of the Capital Improvement Capital Projects Fund and transfers from the Sewer and Water
Enterprise Funds. The City Buikling Construction Capital Projects Fund received the city building loan
proceeds. The loan had not fully been drawn down at year end; therefore, no amortization schedule has been
established. The loan will be repaid from transfers from thie Capital Improvernent Capital Projects Fund and
Sewer and Water Enterprise Funds. The Issue Il Paving Loan will be repaid from motor vehicle license revenue
ofthe Permissive Tax Special Revenue Fund. Compensated absences reported inthe "compensated absences
payable™ account will be paid from the fund which the employees’ salaries are paid. The City has been
approved for a $134,000 loan for water well replacements from the Ohio Public Works Commission. The Issue
1t Water Well Loan had not fully been drawn down at year end; therefore, no amortization schedule has been
established. As of December 31, 1999, the City's overall fegal debt margin (the ability to issue additional
amounts of general obligation bonded debt) was $7,056,760.
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Principal and interest requirements to retire the water loan at December 31, 1999, are as follows:

Year Principgl Interest Total
2000 $77,578 $7.110 $84 688
2001 82144 2.563 84,707

$159,722 $9,673 $169,395

Principal and interest requirements to retire the fire truck and property loans at December 31, 1999, are as
follows: '

Fire Truck Loan Property Loan
Year Principal _Interest Total Principal _Interest Total
2000 $75,000 $13,500 $88,500 $9,849  $21,874 $31,523
2001 75,000 9,900 84,900 11,337 23,051 34,388
2002 75,000 6,310 81,310 12,036 22,352 34,388
2003 ’ 75,000 2,700 77,700 12,779 21,609 34,388
2004 0 0 0 13,567 20,821 34,388
2005 to 2009 0 0 0 339,602 90,472 430,074

$300,000 $32410 $332410  $399.170 $199.979 _$599,149

__———e———— et =l

Principal and interest requirements to retire the police pension liability at December 31, 1899, are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2000 $207 $1,007 $1,304
2001 309 : 995 1,304
2002 323 981 1,304
2003 337 087 1,304
2004 351 953 1,304
2005-2035 22,157 17,556 39,713

3,774 $22,459 233

Principal and interest requirements to retire the Issue Il paving loan at December 31, 1999, are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2000 $10,118 $1,340 $11,458
2001 10,322 1,137 11,459
2002 10,529 929 11,458
2003 10,741 717 11,458
2004 10,957 502 11,459
2005 to 2009 16,849 338 17,187

$69,516 34,963 $74.479

NOTE 17 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

At December 31, 1999, the Law Enforcement Block Grant Special Revenue Fund owed $1,352 to the General
Fund for services rendered.
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NOTE 18 - CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS

As of December 31, 1999, the City had contractual commitments for the following projects:

Contractual : Balance
Commitments Expended 12-31-99
* Water Well Replacement $867,000 $626,626 $240,374
Wastewater Treatment Plant -
_Belt Filter Press System '
Improvement ' 442 000 0 442,000
- Total _ _$1,309,000 226!626 £82!374

NOTE 19 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS |

The City's enterprise funds account for the provision of pool, sanitation, sewer, and water services. The table
below reflects, in a summiarized format, the more significant financial data relating to the enterprise funds of
the City of Belpre as of and for the year ended December 31, 1999:

Pool _ Sanitaion  Sewer Water Total

Operating Revenues $41258 $555483 $955718  $593.396 $2,145855

Depreciation Expense 5,210 0 111,428 - 57,954 174,592

Operating Income {l-oss} o (20,927j 93,670 51,027 140,411 264,181

Net Non-Operating Expenses 0 0 0 (10,261) {10,261)
Operating Transfers In ' 15,000 0o 0- .0 15,000
Operating Transfers Qut 0 (60,000) (45,0005 {40,000) (145,000)
Net Income(Loss) (5927) 33,670 6,027 90,150 123,920
Additions 1o Fixed Asses 24,604 0 65340 796218 886,162
Current Capftal Contributions 25,000 0 6,680 409,890 441,570
Net Working Capital 10,787 203,224 166,304 163,093 543,408
Total Assets 154230 206,387 2,076,177 2453754 4,890,548
Long-Term Liabilities to be |

Paid from Fund Revenues H 1,137 46,242 108,021 155,400
Tolal Equity 153,234 202,087 1,982,239 2,171,315 4,508,875
Encumbrances Outstanding

at Decemnber 31, 1999 0 0 453,537 15,806 489,343

38



City of Belpre, Ohio
Notes to the General Purpose Financial Statements
December 31, 1999

NOTE 20 - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

Changes in contributed capital for the year ended December 31, 1999:

Pool __Sewer Water Total
Contributed Capital December 31, 1998 $98,459  $175,858  $405,538 $679,855
Current Contributions: _
Intergovemmental 25,000 0 380,500 405,500
Customers 0 0 29,390 29,390
Other Funds 0 6,680 0 6,680
Total Current Contributions 25,000 6,680 409,890 441,570
Depreciation of Assets Acquired , _ . .
by Contributed Capital (2,860) 0 (6,509) (9.369)

Contributed Capital December 31, 1999 $120,599 $182,538 $808,919 _$1,112,056

NOTE 21 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

A.  Community Action Program Corporation of Washington-Morgan Counties, Ohio

The Community Action Program Corporation of Washington-Morgan Counties, Ohio, is operated as non-
profit organization formed to provide various programs in Washington and Morgan Counties. Currently,
the Corporation administers the Family Service and Qutreach Program; the Community Action Bus Line
(CABL); the Child Development Program; the Senior Nutrition Program; Women, Infants and Childrens’
Suppiemental Nutrition Program; the Home Weatherization Assistance and Energy Program; the Job
Training and Partnership Act Program; Housing and Urban Developmem Section 8 Existing Housing
Voucher/Certificate Program; and various other state and federal programs. The Corporation is the direct
recipient of the federal and state monies. The Corporation is govemed by a fiteen member council. The
council is composed of the Mayor of the City of Marietta, the Mayor of the City of Belpre, two
commissioners from Washington County, one Commissioner from Morgan County, five lower income
representatives, and five private sector representatives from Washington and Morgan Counties selected
by outreach workers. Currently, the Corporation, by contract with the City of Belpre and Washington and
Morgan Counties, provides administrative services to these govemments in specific programs. During
1999, the Corporation administered the City's share of the City’s Housing and Urban Development grant
and Comprehensive Housing Improvement Program grant. Also during 1999, the City contracted with the
Corporation fornursing services under a contract between the City and the Corporation. During 1999, the
Corporation did not receive any administrative fees from the City. These fees were received by the

Corporation directly from the granting agencies. The continued existence of the Corporation is not
dependent on the City's continued participation and no equity interest exists. :
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Wood, Washington, and Wirt Planning Commission

The Wood, Washinglon, and Wirt Planning Commission was created to fulfill the requirements governing
urban transporation planning under the Federal Highway Administration and Urban Mass Transportation
Administration program regulations in Wood, Washington, and Wirt Counties. The Commission was
formed pursuant to West Virginia Code Sections and Ohio Revised Code Section 713.30 and serves as
a form of a regional planning commission. The Commission is composed of representatives from county
and city govemments and a cross section of members from the community appointed by the governmental
units. Cumently, the Commission has eight governmental representatives and the Mayor of the City of
Belpre serves on the Commission. Revenues are derived from Federal Highway and Federal
Transportation Administration Grants distributed by the States of Ohio and West Virginia. Local
governments contribute a ten percent local match. During 1999, the City of Belpre contributed $1,611.
The continued existence of the Commission is not dependent on the City's continued participation and no
equity interest exdsts,

NOTE 22 - CONTINGENCIES

A.

Grants

The City received financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the grantor agencies. Any
disaliowed claims resulting from such audits coukd become a liability of the general fund or other
applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a
material adverse effect on the overall financial position of the City at December 31, 1999,

Litigation

The City of Belpre is currently not party to any litigation proceedings seeking damages or injunctive relief
as confirmed by the City Law Director.
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COMBINING, INDIVIDUAL FUND, AND ACCOUNT GROUP
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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" I General Fund

The General Fund is used to account for financial resources traditionally assoctated with general
governmental operations which are not required to be accounted for by another fund.
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City of Belpre, Chio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)

General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 1990

Revenues:

Municipal Income Tax
Property and Other Taxes
Charges for Services

Fines, Licenses and Permils
Intergovemmental

Interest

Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Security of Persons and Propenty:
Police:

Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay

Total Police

Fire:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Materials and Supplies
Capital Outlay

Total Fire
Total Security of Persons and Property

Public Health Services:
Health Services:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Materials and Supplies

Total Public Health Services

Leisure Time Activities:
Senior Citizens:
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits -
Materials and Supplies

Total Leisure Time Activities

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$669,500 $680,263 $10,763
194,566 229,939 35,373
70,212 67,822 (2,390)
96,136 145,945 49,809
188,119 251,705 63,586
37,000 64,264 27.264
27,100 17,320 (9,780)
1,282,633 1,457,258 174,625
503,241 482,398 20,843
190,528 185,091 5,437
87,920 87,036 8384
21,215 4,552 _16,663
802,904 759,077 43,827
34,652 33,849 803
26,255 26,051 204
47,532 45,328 2,204
1,050 1,046 4
109,489 106,274 3,215
912,393 865,351 47,042
21,668 16,174 5,494
2,270 1,831 439
4,700 3,666 1,034
28,638 21,671 6,967
13,487 13,487 0
2,408 2,346 62
5,250 4,503 747
21,145 20,336 809
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' City of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
General Fund (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Transporiation:
- - Street Lighting: -
Materials and Supplies $80,000 $70,698 $9,304
Total Transportation 80,000 70,696 9,304
General Government; |
Coungil: '

Salaries and Wages 23,410 23,350 60

Fringe Benefits 4,195 3,937 258

Materials and Supplies 5,550 5,409 141
Total Gouncil 33,155 32,696 459
Mayor: ‘

Salaries and Wages 36,595 35,763 832

Fringe Benefils 10,135 9,694 441

Materials and Supplies 2,280 2,252 28

Capital Outlay i 2,424 2,424 0
Total Mayor 51,434 50,133 1,301
Auditor and Treasurer:

Materials and Supplies 27,625 17,927 - 9,698
Total Auditor and Treasurer 27,625 17,927 9,698
Auditor;

Salaries and Wages 73,900 73,826 74

Fringe Benefits 25,420 23,848 1,572

Materials and Supplies 11,530 8,795 2,735

Capital Qutlay 3,420 1,804 1,616

Other 200 0 200
Total Auditor 114,470 108,273 6,197
Treasurer;

Salaries and Wages 2,880 2,876 4

Fringe Benefits 1,233 501 732

Materials and Supplies 175 80 95
Total Treasurer 4,288 3,457 831
Law Director:

Salaries and Wages 34,500 34,460 40

Fringe Benefits 22,536 21,454 1,082
Total Law Director 57,036 55,914 1,122

: (continued)
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
General Fund (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Civil Service:

Salaries and Wages $1,750 $1,750 $0

Fringe Benefits 361 289 72

Materials and Supplies 1,275 148 1,127
Total Givil Service 3386 . 2,187 1,199
Inspectors:

Salaries and Wages 3,910 3,638 272
Total Inspectors 3,910 3,638 272
City Building: _

Salaries and Wages 45,785 45,785 0

Fringe Benefits 16,622 16,526 96

Materials and Supplies ) 67,239 60,759 6,480
Total Civil Service 129 646 123,070 6,576

Total General Government 424,950 397,295 27,655
Total Expenditures ' 1,467,126 1,375,349 91,777
Excess of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures (184,493) 81,909 266,402
Other Financing Sources (Uées): :

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets 1,000 75 - {925)
Operating Transfers In 75,000 60,000 (15,000)
Operating Transfers Out (55,000) (26,000) 29,000
Total Other Financing Sowces (Uses) 21000 34,075 13,075
Excess of Revenues and Other

Financing Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses  (163,493) 115,984 279,477
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 226,703 226,703 ]
Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances 7,185 7,185 0-
Fund Balance at End of Year ‘ $70,395 $349 872 $270.477
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Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources {other than
for major capital projects) that are restricted by law or administrative action to expenditures for specified
purposes. :

Street - Required by the Ohio Revised Code to account for that portion of the State gasoline {ax and motor
vehicle registration fees designated for maintenance of streets within the City.

Permissive Tax - To account for monies received from two $5 taxes on motor vehicle licenses, one from
Washington County and one from the City. The monies are used for the maintenance of public roads,
highways, streets, and bridges within the City.

State Highway - Required by the Ohio Revised Code to account for that portion of the State gasoline taxand
motor vehicle registration fees designated for maintenance of state highways within the City.

Cops - To account for federal and State grants used to establish or expand community policing programs.

Law Enforcement Block Grant - To account for federal monies to help finance police protection.

Law Enforcement Trust - Required by the Ohio Revised Code to account for monies received from Federal
Law Enforcement agericies designated for law enforcement purposes.

Enforcement and Education - To account for money confiscated during drug busts that is used for future drug
enforcement and for drug education programs. This fund also accounts for the Drug Abuse Resistance

Education (DARE) program which accounts for donations and grant monies for education designed to
prevent drug abuse.

River Front Feasibility - To account for a State grant received for a river walk study to be conducted by the
Army Corp of Engineers. _ '

Mayor's Court Computerization - To account for a fee not to exceed $3 per case for the purpose of
computerizing the court and making computer research services available to the court.

Clerk Computerization - To account for a fee not to exceed $10 per case for the purpose of computerizing
the office of the clerk of the mayor's court.

Natural Resources - Restricted - To account for money received from the Environmental Protection Agency
whose use Is restricted to the planting of trees and other environmental projects.

Federal Emergency Management Agency - To account for federal monies received through the Emergency
Management Association to reimburse the City for flood damage.

Parks - To account for donations and rental payments used for the operation of the City parks and pool.
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Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Receivables:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Items

Tolal Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Compensated Absences Payable

Due to Other Funds
Intergovernmental Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Equity:

Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances
Reserved for Inventory
Unreserved, Undesignated

Total Fund Equity
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity

City of Belpre, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet
All Spectal Revenue Funds

December 31, 1999

Pemissive State

- Street Tax Highway Cops
$25,561 $26,821 $17,298 $200
0 2,790 0 0
15,689 0 1,272 0
9,456 0 0 0
2,111 0 0 0
. $562.817 $29,611 $18.,570 $200
$4,559 $0 $0 $0
4,356 0 93 0
826 0 92 0
0 0 0 (1]
7.375 0 248 0
17,116 0 433 0
5,635 0 0 0
9,456 0 0 0
20,610 29,611 18,137 200
35,701 29,611 18,137 200
. $52.817 $29.611 $18,570 $200
{continued)
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet
All Special Revenue Funds (Continued)
December 31, 1999

Law
Enforcement Law Enforcement
Block Enforcement and
Grant Trust Education
Assets:
Equity in Pooled Cash and T N
Cash Equivalents $7,052 $969 $1,287
Receivables: _
Taxes 0 0 0
Intergovernmental 0 0 9,576
Materials and Supplies Inventory 0 0 0
Prepaid Items 0 0 0
Total Assets $7.,052 $969 $10,863
Liabilities;
Accounts Payable $0 $0 $0
Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable 0 0 0
Compensated Absences Payable 0 0 0
Due to Other Funds 1,352 0 0
Intergovernmental Payable 0 0 0
Total Liabilities 1,352 0 0
Fund Equity:
Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances 0 0 0
Reserved for Inventory D 0 0
Unreserved, Undesignated 5,700 969 10,863
Total Fund Equity 5,700 969 10,863
Total Liabilities and Fund Equity $7,052 $969 $10,863




Mayor's

Court Clerk
Computerization Computerization Parks Totals

$4,571 $6,906 $21,016 $111,681

0 0 0 2,790

1] 0 0 26,537
0 0 0 9,456

0 0 1,892 4,003

$4,571 $6,906 $22,908 $154,467

$0 30 $1,475 $6,034

0 0 29 4,478

0 0 (1] 918

0 0 0 1,352

0 0 794 8,417

1] 0 2,298 21,199

22 0 170 5,827

o 0 0 9,456

4 549 6,906 20,440 117,985
4,571 6,906 20,610 133,268
$4.571 $6,906 $22 808 $154.457
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For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues:

Permissive Motor Vehicle
License Taxes

Charges for Services

Fines, Licenses, and Pemits -
Intergovernmental

Interest

Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Cumrent:
Security of Persons and Property
Leisure Time Activities
Transpertation
General Government

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
{Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year

Increase in Reserve for Inventory

Fund Balances at End of Year

City of Belpre, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
All Special Revenue Funds

Permissive State
Street Tax Highway Cops
$0 $35,789 $0 $0
6,200 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
215,328 39,373 17,459 1,875
736 0 1,032 a
39 0 0 0
222,303 75,162 18,491 1,875
0 0 0 6,675
0 0 0 0
293,933 61,271 15,108 0
0 0 0 0
0 4,984 0 0
0 1,494 0 0
293,933 67,749 15,108 6,675
(71,630) 7.413 3,383 (4,300)
30,000 0 0 0
(41,630) 7,413 3,383 (4,800)
75,716 22,198 14,754 5,000
1,615 0 0 0
$35,701 $29.641 $18,137 $200




Law

Enforcement Law Enforcement River Mayor's
Block Enforcement and Front Court
Grant Trust Education Feasibility _Computerization

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 525 0 3,341
7,000 0 15,754 125,000 0
320 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0
7,320 0 16,279 125,000 3,341
13,479 3,822 9,438 0 1,443
0 0 0 125,000 0

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

LH 0 0 ] 0

0 0 0 (1 0
13,479 3,822 9,438 125,000 1,443
(6,159) (3,822) 6,841 0 1,898
0 0 0 0 0
{6,159) (3,822) 6,841 0 1,898
11,859 4,791 4,022 0 2,673
0 0 0 0 0
$5,700 $969 $10,863 $0 $4,571
(continued)
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Revenues:

Pemissive Motor Vehicle
License Taxes

Charges for Services

Fines, Licenses, and Permits
Intergovernmental

Interest

Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Security of Persons and Property
Leisure Time Activities
Transportation
General Govemnment

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expendifures

Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sowrces Over
(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year

Increase in Reserve for Invenfory

Fund Balances at End of Year

City of Belpre, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
All Special Revenue Funds (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Natural
Clerk Resources -
Computerization Restiicted Parks Totals

$0 $0 $0 - $35,789

0 0 1,000 7,200
11,248 0 0 15,114
0 0 23,350 445139

0 0 0 2,088

0 0 23,776 23,815
11,248 0 48,126 529,145
7,369 0 0 42,226
0 0 66,067 191,087

0 0 0 370,312

0 11,676 0 11,676

0 0 0 4,984

0 0 0 1,494
7,369 11,676 66,087 621,759
3,879 (11,676) (17.941) (92,614)
0 0 21,000 51,000
3,879 (11,676) 3,059 (41,614)
3,027 11,676 17,551 173,267
0 0 0 1615
$6,906 $0 $20,610 $133,268
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Street Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Reavised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for Services $10,099 $16,199 $5,200
Intergovemmental 205,000 215,478 10,478
interest 2,800 873 (2,027)
Other : 1,500 .39 {1,461)
Total Revenues 220,399 232,589 12,190
Expenditures:
Current:
Transpontation:
Street Maintenance and Repair:
Salaries and Wages 164,010 155,201 8,809
Fringe Benefits 56,240 52,540 3,700
Materials and Supplies 80,350 75,948 4,402
Total Expenditures 300,600 283,689 16,911
Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures {80,201) {51,100) 29,101
Other Financing Sources:
Operating Transfers In ' 70,000 30,000 (40,000)
Excess of Revenues and Other Fmancmg
Sources Under Expenditures (10,201) (21,100) (10,899)
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 39,138 39,138 0
Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances 829 829 0
Fund Balance at End of Year $29,766 $18,867 . ($10,899)
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Cily of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Permissive Tax Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues: :
Pemnissive Motor Vehicle License Tax $31,500 $35,796 $4,296
Intergovernmental 35,900 39,373 3,473
_ Total Revenues 67,400 75,169 _ _7,769
Expenditures:
Current;
Transportation:
Street Maintenance and Repair: _
Capital Outlay L 61,271 61,271 0
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 4,984 4,984 0
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,494 1,494 0
Tolal Expenditures 67,749 67,749 0
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expencﬁt_wes (349) 7,420 7,769
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 19,401 19,401 0

Fund Balance at End of Year $19,052 $26,821 $7,769
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
‘State Highway Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
 Intergovemmental $16,900 $17.471 $571
Interest : 0 1,077 1,077
Total Revenues 16,900 18,548 1,648
Expenditures;
Curmrent:
Transportation;
Street Maintenance and Repair: !
Salaries and Wages 5,327 4,677 650
Fringe Benefits 1,645 1,511 134
- Materials and Supplies 10,000 8,851 1,149
Total Expenditures 16,972 15,039 1,933
Excess of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures {72) 3,509 3,581
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 13,569 13,569 0
Fund Balance at End bf Year $13,497 $17,078 $3,581
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City of Belpre, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Cops Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues
Expenditures;
Current:

Security of Persons and Property:

Police:
Salaries and Wages

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance af End of Year

Variance

Revised Favorable
Budget Aclual {Unfavorable)
$25,000 $2,500 ($22,500)
25,000 2,500 (22,500)
25,000 8,675 18,325
25,000 6,675 18,325
0 (4,175) (4.175)
4,375 4,375 0
$4,375 $200 ($4,175)
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Aclual (Budget Basis)
Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovemmental ' 7 $10,000 $7,000 ($3,000)
Interest : 0 365 365
Tofal Revenues 10,000 7,365 - (2,635)
Expenditures:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property:
Police:
Salaries and Wages _ 6,400 3,038 3,362
Materials and Supplies 9,100 9,089 11
Total Expenditures 15,500 12,127 3,373
Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures (5.500)  (4,762) 738
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 11,762 11,762 0
Fund Balance at End of Year $6,262 $7,000 $738
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Law Enforcement Trust Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised ‘Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Expenditures: '
Current:
Security of Persons and Property:
Police; o
Materials and Supplies $4,275 $3,347 $928
Total Expenditures 4,275 3,347 928
Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures (4,275) (3,347) - 928
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 4275 4,275 0
Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances 41 41 0

Fund Balance at End of Year $41 $969 $928
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City of Belpre, Qhio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Aclual (Budget Basis)
: - Enforcement and Education Fund-
For the Year. Ended December-31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
o Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
. Revenues: - W
. Fines, Licenses, and Permits S $749 $500 ($249)
~ Intergovemmental ] ' 9,251 6,178 - 3,073)
Tofai Reverwes - 10,000 _ 6,678 (3,322)
Expenditures: |
Cumrent:
Security of Persons and Property; ,
Police: - .
Salaries and Wages 10,000 9,438. - - 562
Total Expenditures: 10,000 9,438 562
 Excess of Reveniies Under Expenditurss 0 (2,760) (2,780
Fund Balance af Beginning of Year 3,907 3,997 | 0
Fund Balance at End of Year =~ $3.907  $1.237 ($2,760)
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' . City‘of Belpre Ohm :
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures; and Changes
in Fund Balance-- Budget :and Actual (Budget Basis)

River Front Feasibility Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues: 7
Intergovernmental

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current;
Leisure Time Adtivities:

River Front Study:

- Capital Outiay 7
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenués Over Expendifures
Fund Balance at Beg:nnmg of Year

Fund Bafance af End of Year

Variance

Revised _ " Favorable
Budget ~ Actual (ynfavo_rable)
$250,000  _$125,000 ($125,000)
250,000 125,000 (125,000)
250,000 125,000 125,000
250,000_ 125,000 125,000
| 0 0 0

0 0 0

$0 $0 $0
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City of Belpre, Chio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
_ Mayor's Court Computerization Fund
~ For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Ravenues:
Fines, Licenses, and Permits _ $2.200 $3,456 $1,256
Total Reverues . | 2,200 3,456 1,256
Expenditures:
Current:
Security of Persons and Property:
Mayor's Court: S
Materials and Supplies 2,200 - - 1485 - 734
Total Expenditures - 2,200 1,465 735
Excess of Revenues. Over Expenditures 0 1,991 1,991
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 2,384 - .- 2384 0
Fund Balance at End of Year $2384 - .. $4375 - $1.991
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- - . City of Belpre, Chio-

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual {Budget Basis)
Clerk Computerization Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

i g Variance

Revised “Favorable
Budget Actual - (Unfavorable)
Revenues: _ .
Fines, Licenses, and Permits B $7,600 $11,661 $4,061
Tofal Revenues 7,600 11,661 ' 4,061
Expenditures: '
Current;
--Security of Persons and Property:
Clerk: -
Materials and Supplies - 7,600 7,044 558
Total Expenditures 7,600 7,044 ' 556
‘Excess of Revenues-Over Expenditures 0 4,617 T 4617
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year: 1,473 1,473 0
Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances 225 225 0
Fund Balance at End of Year $1,698 $6,315 $4.617
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and: Actual (Budget Basis)
- Natural Resousees ~ Restrietéd Fund -
For the YearEnded-Decémber 31, 41999

Variance
Revised Favorable
o Budget Actlual {Unfavorable)
Expenditures:
Cuprent:
- “General Government:
Landscaping Projects:: L :

- Capital Outlay - $11,676 $11,676 $0
Total Expenditures o 11,676 11,676 0
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures (11,676) (11,876) 0
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 11,676 11,676 0
Fund Balance at End af Year $0 ] $0 | $0
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. . *. -:City-of-Belpre, Ohio -
Schedule-of-Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance --Budget-and :Actual (Budget Basis)

Federal Emergency Management Agency Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised - "Favdrable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues: _ - N
Intergovermnmental $30,000 $24,460 ($5,540)
Total Révenves 7 30,000 24460 - (5,540)
‘Expenditures:
Gurrent: .
General Government:
Reimbursements; - _ A
Materials and Supplies 7 25,000 24,460 540
Total Expenditures o 25,000 24 460 540
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditwres 5,000 0 (5,000)
Fund Balance af Beginning of Year 0 0 0
Fund Balance at End of Year $5,000 $0 ($5,000)
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Parks Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Charges for Services $7,186 $7.186 $0
Intergovernmental 50,000 48,350 (1,650)
Other 12,900 23,776 10,876
Total Revenues 70,086 79,312 9,228
Expenditures:
Current:
Leisure Time Activities:
Recreation:
Salaries and Wages 17,650 17,408 242
Fringe Benefits 3,919 3,675 244
Materials and Supplies 23,650 23,329 s |
Capilal Outlay 50,000 48,000 2,000
Total Expenditures 95,219 92 412 2,807
Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures (25,133) {13,100) - 12,033
Other Finahcing Sources:
Operating Transfers In 30,000 21,000 (9,000)
Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures 4,867 7,900 3,033
Fund Balance (Deficit} at Beginning of Year ~ (12,569) {12,569) 0
Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances 25,000 25,000 0
Fund Balance at End of Year $17,298 $20,331 . $3,033
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Capital Projects Funds

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used forthe acquisition or construction of major

capttal facilties (other than those financed by propriefary funds.)

City Building Construction - To account for all costs associated with the construction of the new city building.

Capital_Improvements - To account for income tax revenues and grants used for general capital

improvements in the City.
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Assets: o
Equity in Pooled Cash and
Cash Equivalents .
Taxes Receivable

Total Assets

Libilities: -

Accounts Payable

Retainage Payable

Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Equity:

Fund Balances: '
Reserved for Encumbrances
Unreserved, Undesignated (Deficit)

Total Fund Equity (Deficit). -

Total Uébﬂiﬁes and Fund équiiy

Cily of Belpre, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet
All Capital Projects Funds

December 31, 1999 -

City

Building Capital
Conslruction Improvements Totals

$11,362 $354,932 ' $366,204
0 45641 - - 45841
$11,362 $400,573 $411,935
$3,324 $0 $3,324
34,326 0 © 34,326

0 16,012 18,012

37,650 18,012 53,662
7,080° - 420 7.420
(33,288) 384,141 350,853
(26,288) 384,561 .- 358273
$11,362 $400,573 - "$411,935
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.. Gity'of._BéIpre',- Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

All Capital Projects Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues: :
Municipal Income Tax
Intergovemmental

Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Capital Outlay -
~Debt Service:

Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Under Expendmres

~ Other Financing Sources (Uses): ;

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets :

Proceeds from Loans

Operating Transfers In

Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other Financing
Sources Over (Under) Expendifures
and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Fund Balance (Deficit) at End of Year

City
Building Capital 7 '
Construction Improvements __Totals
~$0 $252,782 $252,782
0 145,380 145,380
0 398,162 398,162
1,385,788 658,533 2,044,321
0 75,830 75,830 .
0 22,260 22,260
1,385,788 756,623 _ 2142411
(1,385,788) (358,461) (1,744,249)
849,500 346,598 - 1,196,008 .
360,000 400,000 760,000
150,000 0 150,000
0 (105,000) (105,000)
1,359,500 641,598 2,001,098
(26,288) 283,137 256,849
0 101,424 101,424
($26,288) $384,561 $358,273
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and. Actual (Budget Basis)
- City Building Construction Fund.
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999 :

Expenditures:

Capital Outlay:

City Building:
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excéss of Revenues‘. Under Expenditures '

Other Financing Sources:
Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Proceeds from Loans :
Operating Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources

Excess of Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balance at Béginnihg of Year
Fund Balance at End of Year

Variance

Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$1,400,000 $1,3584682 -$41,538
1400000  _ 1,358462 _ 41,538
{1,400,000) (1,358,462) 41 ,_538
850,000 849,500 - - (500)
400,000 360,000 - © (40,000)
150,000 150000 - : - 0
1,400,000 1,359,500 {40,500)
0 1,038 1,038

0 . 0 0

$6- . $1,0%8 $1.038

69



- City of Belpre Oh|o

Schedule of Revenues Expenditures; and Changes
in Fund Batance - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)

Capital Improvements Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues:
Municipal Income Tax
" Intergovernmental

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay:

- Capital Improvements:
-Capital Outlay

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):’

- Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assets
Proceeds from Loans

Operating Transfers OQut

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures
and Other Financing Uses

Fund Balance af Beginning of Year

Fund Balance atf End of Year

_Variance

Revised " Favorable °
Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
$250,000 $250,000 $0
224,500 145,380 (79,120)
474,500 395,380 (79,120)
741,392 658,953 82,439
75,830 75,830 0
22,262 22,260 2
839,484 757,043 82,441
(364,984) (361,663) 3,321
305,000 346,508 41,598
400,000 400,000 0
{(112,516) (105,000) 7,518
592,484 641,598 49,114
227,500 279,935 52,435
74,577 74,577 0
$302,077 $354,512 $52,435




Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are set up to account for the operation of governmental facilities and services that are
entirely or predominately self-supporting from user charges.

Poot - To account for receipts from pool passes and rentals to operate the City swimming pool.
Sanitation - To account for sanitation billing revenues used to provide sanitation services.

Sewer - To account for the revenues generated from the charges for sanitary sewer services provided to
the residential and commercial users of the City.

Water - To account for the revenues generated from the charges for distribution of water to the residential
and commercial users of the City.
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet
All Enterprise Funds
December 31, 1999

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables:

Accounts

Loans
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Prepaid Hems

" Total Cuirent Assels
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Total Restricted Assets

Fixed Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) -

Total Assels

Liakilities:
Accounts Payahle
Contracts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable

Compensated Absences Payable
Intergovemmental Payable
Loans Payable

Total Cumrent Liabilities

Payable frorn Reslricted Assets:
Customer Deposits

Long-Term Liabilities;
Issue |l Loans Payable
Loans Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Total Long-Temn Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Fund Equity:
Contributed Capital
Retained Eamings
Total Fund Equity

Total Liabilities and Fund Equity

72

Pool Sanitation

$11,783 $154 461
o 51,926 -
.0 0.

-7 - . O Q

11783 206,387

0 0

0 0

0 0.

142,447 0
$154,230 $206,387 .-
$582 $0

0 0

0 168
0 15 -

414 2,980
0 0_

996 3,163

0 0

0 0

0 0

o 1137

0. 1,137

- 996 4,300

120,599 0

32,635 202,087

153,234 - 202,087

$154,230° $206,387




Sewer

Water Totals

$109,611 $186,506 $462,451
100,548 53,765 206,239
0 16,084 16.084

1,536 4,466 6,002
2,305 2,317 4622
214,000 263,228 695,398
0 24,283 24,283

0 50,000 50.000
0 74,283 74,283 -
1,862,177 2:116,243_ 4,120,867
$2,076 177 $2,453,754 $4,800,548
$11,639 $13,840 $26,061
12,980 700 13,680
5.840 2,095 8,103
611 611 1,237
16,626 5,311 25,331

0 77,578 77.578

47,696 100,135 151,990

0 74,283 74,283

0 13,313 13,313

0 - 82,144 82.144

46,242 12,564 59943
46,242 108,021 155,400
93,038 282,439 381,673
182,538 808,019 1,412,056
1,799,701 1,362,306 3,396,819
1,982,239 2,171,315 4,508,875
$2,076,177 $2,453,754 $4,800,548
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City of Belpre, Ohio

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and Changes in Retained Eamings
All Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Operating Revenues:

Charges for Services

Other

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Salaries and Wages

Fringe Benefils

Conltractual Services

Materials and Supplies

Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest Income

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Income (Loss) Before Operating Transfers

Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Net Income (Loss)

Depreciation on Fixed Assels
Acquired by Contributed Capital

Reftained Eamings at Beginning of Year
Residual Equily Transfer Out

Retained Earnings at End of Year
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Pool Sanitation
$40,817  $555483
341" 0
41 ;2’53 " 555,483
20,802 8.471
4,844 2930
9,771 447350
12,558 3,06
- 5,210 -0
62,185 _ 461,813
(0027) 93,670
0 0

0 0
.0 Q
(20,927) 93,670
15,000 0
0 (60,000)
(6.927) 33,670
2,860 0
35,702 168,417
0 0
$32.635 $202,087




Sewer Water : Totals
$953,518 $593,254 $2,143,172
2,200 142 2.683
955,718 593,396 2,145,855
279,940 104,149 422 362
83,188 37,443 128,405
366,150 202,096 1,025,367
63,985 51.343 130,948
111,428 _ 57.954 174,502
904,691 452,985 1,881,674
51,027 140,411 264,181
0 1,149 1,149
0 (11,410) (11.410)
0 (10,261) (10,261)
51,027 130,150 253,920
0 0 15,000
(45,000) (40,000) {145.000)
6,027 90,150 123,920
0 6,500 9,369
1,793,674 1,272,417 3,270,210
0. (6,680) (6,680)
$1,799,701 $1,362,396 $3,396,819




City of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget-and Actual (Budget Basis)
- Pool Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

Revenues Co

Charges for. Services - : o $39,991 $46,108 $6,117

Intergovemmental -~ 25,000 25,000 : Q0

-Other Operating Revenues . 0 341: _ 34
Total Revenues -~ 64,991 1440 6458
.' Expenses: )

Current: -
Salaries and Wages 34,000 20,802 4198
Fringe Benefits - _ 7,411 5,210 - 2,201
Materials and Supplies Lo 24,050 21,124 - L 2,926

_':Caprlal Oullay g 25,000 24604 - ° 3%
- Total Expenses 90,461 80,740 9,721

Excess of Revenues Under Expenses (25,470) - (9,201) 16,179

Opemting Transfers In i 30,750 15,000 - {15,750)

Excess of Revenues and Operabng : B '
-Transfers Over Expenses e 5,280 5,709 S 429

Fund Equity at Beginning of Year 5,943 - 5,943 0

-Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances - 131 13 0
. Fund Equily at End of Year $11,354 $11,783 $429

76



_ City-of Belpre, Ohio - - :
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Equity-= Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)

Sanitation Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues:

Charges for Services

Other Operating Revenues’

Total Reveies

Expenses:

Current: '
Salaries and Wages
Eringe Benefits
Malerials and Supplies

Total Expenses

Excess of Reven'ues Over Expenses

Operating Transfers Out

Excess of Revenues Over Expenses
and Operating Transfers

Fund Equity at Beginning of Year
Fund Equity at End of Year

Variance

Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
$550,000 $556,182 - $6,182
200 0 (200
550,200 556,182 5982
8,250 8250 - 0
3,085 3,006 79
451,800 447 882 ‘3,918
463,135 459,138 3997
87,085 97,044 9,979
(85,000) (60,000) 25,000
2,065 37,044 34,079
117,109 117,109 0
$119,174 - $154,153 $34.979
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget and Aclual (Budget BaSIS)
Sewer Fund
Forthe Year Ended December 31, 1999

Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Cherges for Services o $867,372 $902,456 $35,084
“Intergovemmental ' ' 200,000 0 - (200,000)
Other Operating Revenues 0 2,200 2,200
Proceeds From Loans . 1,200,000 0 : 7(1 ;200,000)
Total Revenues . _2267372 904656 _ (1,362,716)
: EipenseS' o ; o |
Current: : o _ o :
Salaries and Wages : 266,374 266,202 - 172
Fringe Benefils 86,280 85,457 823
. Materials and Supplies - 435177 420,962 14,215
"Capital Outlay ’ 1,487,027 507,340 979,687
Total Expenses 2,274,858 1,279.96_1 _ 994 897
Excess of Revenues Urider Expenses (7.486) (375305)  (367,819)
Operating Transfers Oul. . (45,000) @500 0
Excess of Revenues Under Expenses o o
and Operafing Transfers .o (52,486) (420,3:05)- ' (367.'81_9)
Fund Equity at Begrnnmg of Year | 60,982 60,*:382 B
Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances ' 6,084 B 084 0
Fund Equity (Deficit) at End of Year $14,580 5$353!2392 !7$367,81 9!
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City of Belpre, Chio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Equity - Budget and Actual {Budget Basis)

Water Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Revenues:

Charges for Services

Tap-In Fees
Intergovernmental

Interest - -

Other Operating Revenues
Customer Deposits Received
Proceeds From Loans
Proceeds From Issue (] ‘Loans

Total Revenues

Expenses:
Current: .
Salaries and Wages
Fringe Benefits
Materials and Suppfies
Capital Outlay -
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement"
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Customer Deposits Retumned

Total Expenses

Excess of Reveniies Over
(Under} Expenses

Operating Transfers Out

Excess of Revenues Under Expenses

and Operating Transfers

Fund Equity at Beginning of Year
Unexpended Prior Year Encumbrances

Fund Equity at End of Year

Variance

Revised . ‘Favorable
Budget Actual ~_(Unfavorable)
$596,527 $811,415 - "$14,888
7,500 29,390 21,890
500,000 380,500 (119,500)
1,149 1,149 - 0
179 142 . @D
7,500 10,450 2,950
367,000 233,000 (134,000)
0 13313 13,313
1,479,855 1,279,350 (200,496)
102,062 102,021 41
39,550 38,330 1,220
269,315 252,929 16,386
1,037,685 797,311 240,374
85,465 73,278 12,187
11,410 11,410 0
6,000 2,355 3,645
1,551,487 1,277,634 273,853
(71,632) 1,725 73,357
(40,000) (40,000) 0
(111,632) (38,275) 73,357
277,950 277,950 0
1,808 1,808 0
$168,126 $241,483 $73,357
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
All Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash Flows from Operating Activitles:

Cash Received from Customers

Cash Payments to Employees for Services and Benefits
Cash Payments for Goods and Services

Cther Operaling Revenues

Customer Deposits Received

Customer Deposits Retumed

Net Cash Provided by (Lised for) Operaling Adtivities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activitles:
Operating Transfers In
Cperating Transfers Out
_Residual Equity Transfer
Repayment of Loan

Net Cash Frovided by (Used for) Noncapital Financing Actmbee .

Cash Flows from Capltal and Related Financing Activitles.
Acquisition of Capital Assets

Proceeds from Issue Il Loans

Proceeds from Loans

Principat Paid on Debt

Interest Paid on Debt T
Contributed Capital -

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Financi};g Acﬁwﬁes

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest on Loans Recefvable

Purchase of Investments

Proceeds on Sale of Investments

Net Cash FProvided by Investing Activilies

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Eguivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalenis Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivelents End of Year

Reconcillation of Operating ncome (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by {Used for) Operating Activitles
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments:
Depreciation Expense

Changes In Assets and Liabilities:
{Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivabla
Decrease in Due from Other Funds
{Increase) Decrease in Materials and Suppliés Inventory
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid ltems
Increase in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Contracts Payable
Increase in Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Increase in Compensated Absences Payable
Increase in Customer Deposits
Increase (Decrease) in Intergovernmental Payable

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Aclivities

a0

Pool Sanitation
$46,108 $556,162
(35.012) (11.231)
(21,324)- (447,882)
341 0
o 0

- 0 - 0
(8,667) 67,069
15,000 0
0 (60,000)

0 0

0 Q
15,000 (60,000)
(24,604) o
0 0

0 0.

0 0
B 0
25,000 0
406 0-
0 0

0 0

0 0
) 0
5,700 37,069
6,074 117,362
$11,783 $154,461
($20,927) $93,670
5210 0
0 699
5,101 0
Y 0

623 0
582 0

0 0

0 44

0 177

0 X

(366) 2479
{$9,6587) $97.069



Sewer Water Total

$902,456 $587,251 $2,091,997
(351,156) (140,305) (537,704)
(436,263) (248,673) (1,153,942}
2,200 - 142 2,683
0 10,450 10,450

0 (2,355) (2,355)
117,237 206,510 411,129
0 0 15,000
{45,000) (40,000} (145,000)
o (6,680) (6,680)

0 30,844 30,844
(45,000) {15,836) (105,836)
{65,340) {797,311) (887,255)
) 13,313 13,313

o 233,000 233,000

] (73.278) (73,278}
0 (11,410) (11,410)

6,680 409 890 * 441,570
(58,660) (225,796) (284,060)
0 1,149 1,149

0 (50,000) (50,000)

0 50,000 50,000

0 1149 1,149
13,577 (33,973) 22,382
96,034 244 852 464,352
$109,611 $210,879 $486,734
$51,027 $140,411 $264,181
111,428 57,954 174,592
{19,909) (6,003) {25,213}
2,372 0 7,563
(279} 606 327
923 (481) 1,065

13 3,089 4,584
(40,205) 700 (39,505)
2,032 524 2,600
14,706 1,604 13,487
0 8,095 8,095
{1,871) {889) (647)
$117,237 $206,510 $411,129

21



Flduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments units, and/or other funds. The City's only fiduciary
funds are agency funds.

Agency Funds

The City's agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement
or results of operations.

Payroll - To account for the payroll clearing account.

Mayor's Court To account for the activities within the mayor's court.
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City of Belpre, Ohio

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabililies
All Agency Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 1999

Balance Balance
12-31-98 Additions Deduction 12-31-99

Payroll:

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and

Cash Equivalents $8.731 $1,625,315 $1,630,668 $3,378
Liabilities:

Intergovernmental Payable $8,731 $1,625,315 $1,630,668 $3,378
Mayor's Court:
Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

in Segregated Accounts $2,300 $166,889 $166,699 $2.490
Liahilities:

Due to Others $2,300 $166,889 $166,699 $2,490
Total All Agency Funds:

Assets:

Equity in Pooled Cash and

Cash Equivalents $8,731 $1,625,315 $1,630,668 $3,378
Cash and Cash Equivalents

in Segregated Accounts 2,300 166,889 166,689 2,450
Tofal Assels $11,031 $1,792,204 $1,797 367 $5,868
Liabilities:

Intergovernmental Payable $8,731 $1,625,315 $1,620,668 $3,378
Due to Others 2,300 166,889 166,699 2,490
Tolal Liabilities $11.031 $1,792,204 $1,797,367 $5 868
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g : General Fixed Assets Account Group

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is used to account for all land, buildings, improvements other than
buildings, machinery and equipment, and vehicles not used in the operation of the enterprise funds.
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Cily of Belpre , Chio
Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets
By Funciion and Activity
For the Year Ended December 31, 1899

General General
Fixed Assets e Fixed Assets

S 12-31-98 Additions Reductions 12-31-99

Security of Persons and Property  $1,825,035 . $83,084 $101,584 .  $1,805,535
Leisure Time Activities 1,342,955 - 14,005 11,472 - 1,345488
Transpod_aﬁoi] T 648,180 0 0 648,180
General Government 1,713,581 1,801,304 391,929 3,122,926
Total . $5,629 721 $1,897,393 $504,985 $6,922 129
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"~ City of Belpre; Ohio
Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Source
December 31, 1999

‘General Fixed Assets:
Land. -
Buildings ] _
Improvements Other Than Buildings
Machinery and Equipment

Vehicles

Total

Investments in General Fixed Assets From:
General Fund Revenues

Special Revenue Fund Revenues

General Obligation Notes

Acquisitions prior to December 31, 1998

Total

[+ hr 4

$1,213,204
2,670,287
792,308

1,030916

_1,215324
$6,922,129
b —— = —— 1]

$1,383,151
14,005
500,237
5,024,736

$6,922,129
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STATISTICAL

SECTION

The City of Belpre does not have any netgeneral bonded debt; therefore, no ratio of net general bonded debt
to assessed value and net bonded debt per capita and no ratio of annual debt service for general bonded
debt to total general fund expenditures are presented in the City’s statistical tables.
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping Governments
(Per $1,000 of Assessed Valuation)

Last Ten Years
City of
Belpre Belpre Washington
General School County Washington

Year Fund District JVS County Total
1990 $3.40 $31.00 “$1.80 $7.20 $43.40
1991 3.40 31.00 1.80 7.70 43.90
1952 3.40 31.00 1.80 7.70 43.90
1993 3.40 31.00 1.80 7.70 43.90
1994 3.40 31.00 1.80 7.70 43.90
1995 3.40 31.00 1.80 7.70 43.90
1996 3.40 31.00 1.80 7.70 43,90
1997 3.40 31.00 1.80 7.70 43.90 |
1998 3.40 31.00 1.80 71.70 43.90
1999 3.40 31.00 1.80 7.70 43.90

Source: Washington County, Ohio; County Auditor




City of Belpre, Ohio

Computation of Legal Debt Margin

December 31, 1999

Overall Debt Limitation
10 1/2% of Assessed Valuation

Loans Payable
Issue Il Loans Payable

Gross Indebtedness Ouistanding
Less: Debt Exempt from Limitation
Water Loan
Issue 1l Water Loan
Total
Net Debt within 10 1/2% Limitation
Legal Debt Margin within 10 1/2% Limitation
Unvoted Debt Limitation
5 1/2% of Assessed Valuation

Gross Indebtedness Outstanding
Less: Debt Exempt from Limitation

Net Debt within 5 1/2% Limitation

Legal Debt Margin within 5 1/2% Limitation

$8,185,448

$1,218,892
82,829

e r—t
1,301,721
159,722

_ 13313

173,035

1,128,686
$7,056,760

$4,287,615

$1,301,721
(173,035)

1,128,686

$3,158,929

—_—

Sources: Washington County, Ohio; County Auditor, and City records
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Computation of Overlapping General Obligation Bonded Debt
December 31, 1999

Percentage Amount
Applicable Applicable
Debt to City of to City of
Jurisdiction Cutstanding Belpre(1) Belpre
Washington County $4,740,000 7.58% $359,292

Source: Washington County, Ohio; County Auditor

(1) Percentages were determined by dividing the assessed valuation of the
political subdivision located within the boundaries of the City by the
total assessed valuation of the subdivision. The valuations used were
for the 1998 collection year.




Cily of Belpre, Ohio
Property Value and Construction

Last Ten Years

Residential Commercial

Property Construction Construction
Year Value (1) Assessed Value Assessed Value
1990 $48,112,650 $494,450 $467,170
1991 48,957,310 298,340 433,530
1992 49,121,490 222,100 51,180
1993 50,997,470 281,530 222 480
1994 51,363,190 185,560 196,000
1995 51,529,080 204,570 69,490
1996 54,649,860 344,170 103,410
1997 54,949,380 111,510 2170
1998 56,399,320 1,042,440 294 290
1999 67,820,000 1,671,810 56,560

Source: Washington County, Ohio; County Auditor

(1) Represents assessed value of real estate.
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Principal Taxpayers - Real and Tangible Personal Property

City of Belpre, Ohio
December 31, 1999

Percent of

1989 Total
Nature Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer of Business Valuation Valuation
Intemational Converter, Incorporated Packaging Manufacturing 31,462,740 1.97%
Kroger Limited Partnership Grocer 1,417,170 1.91%
Lee Middleton Original Dofls, Incorporated Doll Manufacturing 1,261,730 1.70%
Russell L. Covey Land Management 622,010 0.84%
John O. and Linda . Comell Land Management 504,250 0.68%
Belpre Furniture Gallery Fumiture Retail 461,510 0.62%
Analytical Products Group, Incorporated Laboratory Testing and Analysis 456,100 0.61%
Belpre CVS, Incorporated Pharmacy 444 620 0.60%
Martha B. May Land Management 369,850 0.50%
Moore Enterprises Land Management 357 580 0.48%
$7,357,560 9.91%

Source: Washington County, Chio; County Auditor




City of Belpre, Ohio

Principal Taxpayers - Public Utility Property

December 31, 1969

Percent of
1999 Total

Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Valuation Valuation
Ohio Belf Telephone $1,500,700 40.87%
East Ohio Gas Company 965,170 26.28%
Monongahela Power Company 839,310 22.86%
CSX Transportation 174,060 4.74%
$3,479,240 94.75%

Source: Washington County, Ohio; County Auditor
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City of Belpre, Ohio
Ten Largest Employers
December 31, 1999

Nature Number
Employer of Business of Employees
Belpre City School District School 230
Kroger Limited Partnership Grocer 219
Enlow's Food‘ Service 193
Lee Middleton Original Dolls, Incorporated Doll Manufacturing 179
Wal-Bon of Ohio Food Service 131
McDonalds Food Service 128
Pioneer Casting Pipe Manufacturing 104
IGA Grocer 98
Hardees Food Service 80
International Converter, Incorporated Packaging Manufacturing 75

Source: City records




City of Belpre, Ohio
Demographic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Unemployment
School Rate of

Year Population{1) Enrollment(2) Washington County(1)
1990 6,796 1,419 6.40%
1991 6,805 1,411 6.70%
1992 6,880 1,413 8.10%
1993 6,931 1,490 8.10%
1994 6,964 1,545 6.60%
1995 6,972 1,543 6.20%
1996 6,998 1,539 6.50%
1997 7,003 1,491 5.90%
1998 7,016 1,425 5.50%
1999 7,024 1,406 6.60%

(1) Source: Washington County Economic Development Office

(2) Source: Belpre City School District
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City of Belpre, Ohiol
Miscellaneous Information
December 31, 1999

Year of Incorporation as a City 1961
Form of Govermment Mayor/Council
Area 3.5 square miles
Miles of Streets 47
Number of Street Lights 497
Number of Building Permits Issued in 1999 120
Fire Protection:
Number of Stations 2
Number of Volunteer Firemen and Officers 46
Fire Hydrants 154
Police Protection:
Number of Stations 1
Number of Policemen and Officers 10
Municipal Utilities:
Miles of Water Mains 28
Miles of Sanitary Sewer 28
Number of Consumers:
Sewer 2,860
Water 3,100
Average Monthly Consumption (per househald):
Sewer 7,000 gallons
Water 7,000 galions
Minimum Rate:
Sewer $11.82
Water $5.70
Education:
Number of Teachers 98
Number of Students 1,406
Recreation and Culture;
Number of Parks 3
Number of Libraries 1
Number of Swimming Pools 1
Number of Tennis Couris 1
Number of Baseball and Softball Diamonds 6
Number of Boat Ramps 2
Employees:
Full-Time 54
Parl-Time 1

Source: City records




88 East Broad Street
STATE OF OHIO P.O. Box 1140

OFFICE OF THE AUDITOR Columbus, Ohio 43216-1140

Telephone  614-466-4514
JiM PETRO, AUDITOR OF STATE 800-282-0370

Facsimile 614-466-4490

CITY OF BELPRE

WASHINGTON COUNTY

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION
This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office
of the Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed
in Columbus, Ohio.

desarn Poabbtt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
AUGUST 1, 2000
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